# **PROSPECTUS**

# **SEG Partners Long/Short Equity Fund**

CLASS I SHARES CLASS A SHARES

The date of this Prospectus is [ ], 2025

# **Table of Contents**

	Page
SUMMARY OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS	1
SUMMARY OF FUND EXPENSES	9
USE OF PROCEEDS	11
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND STRATEGIES	12
TYPES OF INVESTMENTS AND RELATED RISK FACTORS	15
GENERAL RISKS	15
BUSINESS AND STRUCTURE RELATED RISKS	19
MANAGEMENT RELATED RISKS	21
INVESTMENT RELATED RISKS	23
ADDITIONAL RISKS OF THE FUND.	31
LIMITS OF RISK DISCLOSURE	34
MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND	35
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT FEE	37
INCENTIVE FEE	37
DISTRIBUTOR	38
SALES LOAD	39
DISTRIBUTION PLAN	39
ADMINISTRATOR AND TRANSFER AGENT	40
CUSTODIAN	40
FUND EXPENSES	41
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	43
DISTRIBUTIONS	45
DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN	46
TRANSFERS OF SHARES	49
CALCULATION OF NET ASSET VALUE; VALUATION	50
CERTAIN U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS	51
ERISA CONSIDERATIONS	54
DESCRIPTION OF SHARES	54
ELIGIBLE INVESTORS	55
DERIVATIVE ACTIONS/EXCLUSIVE FORUM	56
TERM, DISSOLUTION AND LIQUIDATION	57
REPORTS TO SHAREHOLDERS	57
FISCAL YEAR	57
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM; LEGAL COUNSEL	57
INQUIRIES	57

#### SUMMARY OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS

This is only a summary and does not contain all of the information that you should consider before investing in the Fund. Before investing in the Fund, you should carefully read the more detailed information appearing elsewhere in this Prospectus, the SAI, and the Declaration of Trust.

The SEG Partners Long/Short Equity Fund (the "Fund") is a Delaware statutory trust that is registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the "Investment Company Act") as a non-diversified closed-end management investment company. The Fund was organized as a Delaware statutory trust on November 4, 2024 and operates under an Agreement and Declaration of Trust dated November 8, 2024 (the "Declaration of Trust"). The Fund is an appropriate investment only for those investors who can tolerate a high degree of risk and do not require a liquid investment.

The Fund offers two separate classes of Shares designated as Class I Shares and Class A Shares. While the Fund currently offers two classes of Shares, it may offer additional classes of Shares in the future. Each class of Shares will have differing characteristics, particularly in terms of the sales charges that Shareholders in that class may bear, and the distribution and service fees that each class may be charged.

# 

The Fund's investment objective is to achieve maximum total return. The Fund seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing primarily in equity securities. Under normal circumstances, the Fund invests at least 80% of its net assets, plus any borrowings for investment purposes, in equity securities. For purposes of the Fund's 80% investment policy, "equity securities" means common and preferred stocks (including investments in initial public offerings ("IPOs")), convertible securities, warrants and rights. To the extent the Fund invests in derivative or other strategic instruments that have similar economic characteristics to equity securities, the market value of such instruments will be included for purposes of calculating the Fund's compliance with its 80% investment policy. The Fund includes cash or money market instruments earmarked or otherwise held as collateral for derivative instruments that have similar economic characteristics to equity securities towards its 80% investment requirement. The Fund may invest in equity securities without restriction as to market capitalization. Under extraordinary circumstances, the Fund may choose to acquire substantial or control stakes in public companies.

The Adviser's approach involves taking long and short positions in equity securities. The majority of the Fund's long portfolio will be invested in growing companies with high returns on capital and high barriers to competition that the Adviser believes are trading at a discount to their intrinsic value. The majority of these companies have been researched for several years before investment and are purchased with an expectation of a multi-year holding period. The long portfolio also includes investments in more opportunistic situations that may be held for shorter periods of time. In the short portfolio, SEG attempts to identify companies that are exposed to ongoing competitive pressures with poor returns on capital and deteriorating fundamentals. The short positions are generally not selected as direct hedges to the long positions. In addition to taking short positions on individual securities, the short portfolio may also include baskets of securities, shorts on indices, long puts and/or short calls.

The Fund may also create short positions in U.S. and international markets for currencies, interest rates, credit, agricultural and energy products and precious, base and ferrous metals by employing swaps, futures, options on futures and forward contracts in those markets. SEG generally expects to utilize these instruments to hedge against macro movements in the markets and/or to seek to capitalize on market dislocations.

Under normal market circumstances, the Fund expects to be primarily invested in U.S. domiciled issuers, although the Fund may invest its assets in investments outside of the U.S., including up to 15% of its assets in emerging markets. Such strategies may involve exposure to foreign currencies, and the Fund may seek to hedge all or a portion of the Fund's foreign currency risk.

The Fund is permitted to borrow money or issue debt securities in an amount up to 33½% of its total assets in accordance with the Investment Company Act. The Fund may establish a credit line to borrow money for a range of purposes, including to satisfy tender requests, to manage timing issues in connection with the inflows of additional capital and the acquisition of Fund investments and to otherwise provide the Fund with liquidity. There is no assurance, however, that the Fund will be able to timely repay any borrowings under such credit line, which may result in the Fund incurring leverage on its portfolio investments from time to time. To enhance the Fund's liquidity, particularly in times of possible net outflows through the repurchase of Shares by periodic tender offers to Shareholders, the Adviser may sell certain of the Fund's assets.

There can be no assurance that the investment objective of the Fund will be achieved. See "Types of Investments and Related Risk Factors."

An investment in the Fund involves substantial risks and special considerations. A discussion of the risks associated with an investment in the Fund can be found under "General risks," "Investment related risks," "Business and structure related risks," "Management related risks," and "Limits of risk disclosure."

Management .....

The Fund's Board of Trustees (the "Board") has overall responsibility for the management and supervision of the business operations of the Fund. See "Management of the Fund — The Board of Trustees." To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Board may delegate any of its rights, powers, and authority to, among others, the officers of the Fund, any committee of the Board or the Adviser.

Pursuant to an investment management agreement (the "Investment Management Agreement"), Select Equity Group, L.P., an investment adviser registered under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended (the "Advisers Act"), serves as the Fund's investment adviser ("SEG" or the "Adviser").

Fund administration . . . . . . . . . . . .

The Fund has retained U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC (doing business as U.S. Bank Global Fund Services) (the "Administrator" or "Fund Services") to provide it with certain administrative services. The Fund compensates the Administrator for these services and reimburses the Administrator for certain of its out-of-pocket expenses. See "Fees and expenses" below.

On an ongoing basis, the Fund bears its own operating expenses (including, without limitation, its offering expenses). A more detailed discussion of the Fund's expenses can be found under "Fund expenses."

Investment Management Fee. The Fund pays the Adviser an investment management fee (the "Investment Management Fee") in consideration of the advisory and other services provided by the Adviser to the Fund. The Fund pays the Adviser an Investment Management Fee at the annual rate of 1.00%, accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears based upon the Fund's average daily net assets. The Adviser has contractually agreed that it shall waive 0.25% of the investment advisory fees payable to it through, July 1, 2026. The waiver of the Investment Management Fee under the Management Fee Waiver Agreement is not subject to recoupment by the Adviser. See "Investment Management Fee." The Investment Management Fee is paid to the Adviser out of the Fund's assets, and therefore decreases the net profits or increases the net losses of the Fund. For purposes of determining the Investment Management Fee payable to the Adviser for any month, net assets are calculated prior to any reduction for any fees and expenses of the Fund for that month, including, without limitation, the Investment Management Fee."

Expense Limitation Agreement. The Adviser has contractually entered into an "Expense Limitation and Reimbursement Agreement" with the Fund to limit for a period of three years following the commencement of the Fund's operations (the "Limitation Period") the amount of "Specified Expenses" (as defined below) borne by the Fund in respect of Class I Shares and Class A Shares during the Limitation Period to an amount not to exceed 0.65% per annum of the Fund's net assets attributable to such Class (the "Expense Cap"). "Specified Expenses" is defined to include all expenses incurred in the business of the Fund, provided that the following expenses are excluded from the definition of Specified Expenses: (i) the Investment Management Fee; (ii) the Incentive Fee; (iii) Distribution and Servicing Fees in respect of any class of Shares; (iv) brokerage costs; (v) certain transaction-related expenses, including those incurred in connection with effecting short sales; (vi) interest payments; (vii) fees and expenses incurred in connection with a credit facility, if any, obtained by the Fund; (viii) taxes; and (ix) extraordinary expenses. The Adviser may extend the Limitation Period for the Fund on an annual basis. To the extent that Specified Expenses in respect of any class of Shares for any month exceed the Expense Cap applicable to a class of Shares, the Adviser will reimburse the Fund for expenses to the extent necessary to eliminate such excess. To the extent that the Adviser bears Specified Expenses in respect of a class of Shares, the Adviser may receive reimbursement for any expense amounts that were previously waived by the Adviser, for a period not to exceed three years from the date on which such expenses were waived by the Adviser, even if such reimbursement occurs after the termination of the Limitation Period, provided that the Fund may only make a repayment to the Adviser if such repayment does not cause the Fund's expense ratio (after the repayment is taken into account) to exceed the lesser of: (1) the Expense Cap in place at the time such amounts were waived by the Adviser; or (2) the Fund's current Expense Cap. See "Fund expenses."

Incentive Fee. Promptly after the end of each fiscal year of the Fund, the Fund pays to the Adviser an incentive fee (the "Incentive Fee") in an amount equal to 20% of the amount by which the Fund's net profits attributable to each class of Shares for all Performance Periods (as defined below) ending within or coterminous with the close of such fiscal year exceed the balance of the loss carryforward account (as described below) maintained in respect of such class, without duplication for any Incentive Fee paid by the Fund in respect of such class during such fiscal year. The Fund also pays the Adviser the Incentive Fee in the event that a Performance Period ends in connection with the repurchase of Shares by the Fund or a dividend or other distribution payable by the Fund, in each case on the date as of which the Fund's net asset value attributable to any class is calculated for such purpose; provided that only that portion of the Incentive Fee that is attributable to (i) the Shares being repurchased (not taking into account any proceeds from any contemporaneous issuance of Shares, by reinvestment of dividends and other distributions or otherwise), or (ii) the dividend or other distribution being paid by the Fund and not being reinvested in Shares of the Fund, will be paid to the Adviser for such Performance Period. The Incentive Fee, if any, is calculated and accrued on each date that the Fund calculates its net asset value. For purposes of calculating the Incentive Fee, net profits means the amount by which: (a) the net assets of the Fund attributable to a class as of the end of a Performance Period, increased by the dollar amount of Shares of such class repurchased by the Fund during the Performance Period (excluding Shares of such class to be repurchased as of the last day of the Performance Period after the determination of the Incentive Fee) and by the amount of dividends and other distributions paid in respect of Shares of such class during the Performance Period and not reinvested in additional Shares of such class (excluding any dividends and other distributions to be paid as of the last day of the Performance Period), exceeds (b) the net assets of the Fund attributable to such class as of the beginning of the Performance Period, increased by the dollar amount of Shares of such class issued during the Performance Period (excluding any Shares of such class issued in connection with the reinvestment of dividends and other distributions paid by the Fund in respect of such class).

"Performance Period" means each 12-month period ending as of the Fund's fiscal year-end (or such other period ending as of the Fund's fiscal year-end in the event the Fund's fiscal year is changed); provided that the period of time from the prior Performance Period-end through the valuation date of (i) a repurchase offer and (ii) a dividend or other distribution also constitutes a Performance Period.

The Incentive Fee is payable for a Performance Period only if and to the extent that the Fund's loss carryforward account has a balance of zero. The loss carryforward account is a memorandum account with respect to each class that will have an initial balance of zero upon commencement of the class's operations and, thereafter, will be credited as of the end of each Performance Period with the amount of any net loss of the Fund attributable to such class for that Performance Period, and will be debited with the amount of any net profits of the Fund attributable to such class for that Performance Period, as applicable. This is known as a "high water mark."

In the event of the termination of the Advisory Agreement, the Fund will pay an Incentive Fee to the Adviser calculated in a manner as if such termination date were the end of the Fund's fiscal year.

The Incentive Fee structure presents risks that are not present in funds without incentive fees. See "*Incentive Fee*."

Distribution Fee. Subject to receipt of exemptive relief from the SEC, the Fund intends to adopt a Distribution and Servicing Plan with respect to Class A Shares (the "Distribution Plan") in compliance with Rule 12b-1 under the Investment Company Act. Under the Distribution Plan, the Fund may pay as compensation up to 0.75% on an annualized basis of the Fund's net asset value attributable to Class A Shares (the "Distribution and Servicing Fee") to the Fund's Distributor or other qualified recipients under the Distribution Plan. The Distribution and Servicing Fee is paid out of the Fund's assets and decreases the net profits or increases the net losses of the Class A Shares. For purposes of determining the Distribution and Servicing Fee, net asset value will be calculated prior to any reduction for any fees and expenses, including, without limitation, the Distribution Fee payable. See "Distribution Plan."

Administration, Fund Accounting and Transfer Agency Fees. Fund Services provides the Fund certain administration services. In consideration for these services, Fund Services is paid an annual fee calculated based upon the average net assets of the Fund, subject to a minimum annual fee (the "Administration Fee"). The Administration Fee is paid to Fund Services out of the assets of the Fund and therefore decreases the net profits or increases the net losses of the Fund. The Fund also reimburses Fund Services for certain miscellaneous expenses and pays Fund Services a fee for transfer agency services and fund accounting services. See "Administration."

**Distributions** . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Because the Fund intends to qualify annually as a regulated investment company (a "RIC") under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), the Fund intends to distribute at least 90% of its annual net taxable income to its Shareholders. Nevertheless, there can be no assurance that the Fund will pay distributions to Shareholders at any particular rate. Each year, a statement on Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS") Form 1099-DIV identifying the amount and character of the Fund's distributions will be distributed to Shareholders. See "*Taxes*" below.

Eligible Investors.....

Shares of the Fund may be purchased by U.S. investors who certify to the Fund or its agent that they are a "qualified client" within the meaning of Rule 205-3 under the Advisers Act. The criteria for qualifying as a "qualified client" is set forth in the subscription documents that must be completed by each prospective investor. The "qualified client" criteria will apply to all investors and will not be waived.

In addition, Shares are generally being offered only to investors that are U.S. persons for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Investors who meet such qualifications are referred to in this Prospectus as "Eligible Investors." The qualifications required to invest in the Fund will appear in subscription documents that must be completed by each prospective investor. Existing Shareholders who request to purchase additional Shares will be required to qualify as "Eligible Investors" and to complete an additional investor certification prior to any additional purchase.

To the extent the Fund identifies any Shareholder holding Shares that was not an Eligible Investor at the time of acquiring such Shares, the Fund reserves the right to (i) cause a mandatory redemption of all or some of the Shares of such Shareholder, or any person acquiring Shares from or through such Shareholder, (ii) retain any unrealized gains or profits associated with Shares held by such Shareholder and/or (iii) take any other action the Board determines to be appropriate in light of the circumstances.

Purchasing Shares.....

The minimum initial investment in Class A Shares and Class I Shares is \$50,000, and the minimum additional investment in the Fund by any investor is \$10,000 with respect to Class I Shares and Class A Shares, except for additional purchases pursuant to the dividend reinvestment plan. However, the Fund, in its sole discretion, may accept investments below these minimums.

Shares will generally be offered for purchase as of the first business day of each calendar month, except that Shares may be offered more or less frequently as determined by the Board in its sole discretion.

Subscriptions for Class A Shares are sold subject to a sales load of up to 2.00% of the subscription amount (the "Sales Load"). No Sales Load may be charged without the consent of the Distributor. See "Sales Load."

Subscriptions are generally subject to the receipt of cleared funds on or prior to the acceptance date set by the Fund and notified to prospective investors. Pending any closing, funds received from prospective investors will be placed in an account with Fund Services as the Fund's transfer agent (the "Transfer Agent"). On the date of any closing, the balance in the account with respect to each investor whose investment is accepted will be invested in the Fund on behalf of such investor. Any interest earned with respect to such account will be paid to the Fund and allocated *pro rata* among Shareholders.

A prospective investor must submit a completed subscription document on or prior to the acceptance date set by the Fund and notified to prospective investors. The Fund reserves the right to accept or reject, in its sole discretion, any request to purchase Shares at any time. The Fund also reserves the right to suspend or terminate offerings of Shares at any time. Additional information regarding the subscription process is set forth under "Purchasing Shares."

Dividend reinvestment plan . . . . .

The Fund has adopted an "opt out" dividend reinvestment plan (the "DRIP"). Investors that wish to participate in the DRIP will not be required to take any action. Shares will be issued pursuant to the DRIP at their NAV determined on the next valuation date following the ex-dividend date (the last date of a dividend period on which an investor can purchase Shares and still be entitled to receive the dividend). Investors that wish to receive their distributions in cash may do so by making a written election to not participate in the DRIP on the investor's subscription agreement or by notifying Fund Services in writing (i) via overnight mail, U.S. Bancorp Global Fund Services, 615 East Michigan St, Milwaukee, WI 53202, or (ii) via USPS mail, Attn: U.S. Bancorp Global Fund Services, 615 East Michigan St, Milwaukee, WI 53202. Such written notice must be received by Fund Services 60 days prior to the record date of the distribution, or the Shareholder will receive such distribution in Shares through the DRIP.

Repurchases of Shares . . . . . . . .

**The Fund is not a liquid investment**. No Shareholder will have the right to require the Fund to redeem its Shares. The Fund from time to time may offer to repurchase Shares pursuant to written tenders by the Shareholders.

The Adviser anticipates recommending to the Board that, under normal market circumstances, the Fund conduct repurchase offers of no more than 25% of the Fund's net assets on or about each January 1, April 1, July 1, and October 1. In certain circumstances, however, the Adviser may recommend to the Board that the Fund conduct a repurchase offer of more or less than 25% of the Fund's net assets.

Any repurchases of Shares will be made at such times and on such terms as may be determined by the Board from time to time in its sole discretion. The Fund may also elect to repurchase less than the full amount that a Shareholder requests to be repurchased. In determining whether the Fund should offer to repurchase Shares from Shareholders of the Fund pursuant to repurchase requests, the Board may consider, among other things, the recommendation of the Adviser as well as a variety of other operational, business and economic factors.

The Fund may sell portfolio investments to fund tender offers. Moreover, if the Fund's portfolio does not provide adequate liquidity to fund tender offers, the Fund may extend the last day of any tender offer. Although tender offers generally would be beneficial to Shareholders by providing them with some ability to sell their Shares at NAV, the repurchase of Shares by the Fund will decrease the total assets of the Fund. Tender offers are, therefore, likely to increase the Fund's expense ratio, may result in untimely sales of portfolio securities, increase the Fund's portfolio turnover and/or may limit the Fund's ability to execute its investment strategy. To the extent the Fund maintains a cash position to satisfy Fund repurchases, the Fund would not be fully invested, which may reduce the Fund's investment performance. Consummating a tender offer may require the Fund to liquidate portfolio securities, and realize gains or losses, at a time when the Adviser would otherwise consider it disadvantageous to do so. The Fund's purchase of tendered Common Shares pursuant to a tender offer would have tax consequences for tendering Shareholders and may have tax consequences for non-tendering Shareholders.

A 2.00% early repurchase fee will be charged by the Fund with respect to any repurchase of Shares from a Shareholder at any time prior to the day immediately preceding the one-year anniversary of the Shareholder's purchase of the Shares. Shares tendered for repurchase will be treated as having been repurchased on a "first in — first out" basis. An early repurchase fee payable by a Shareholder may be waived by the Fund in circumstances where the Board determines that doing so is in the best interests of the Fund. To the extent the Fund determines to waive, impose scheduled variations of, or eliminate an early repurchase fee, it will do so consistently with the requirements of Rule 22d-1 under the Investment Company Act, and the Fund's waiver of, scheduled variation in, or elimination of, the early repurchase fee will apply uniformly to all shareholders regardless of share class. See "Repurchases of Shares."

Transfer restrictions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

A Shareholder may assign, transfer, sell, encumber, pledge or otherwise dispose of (each, a "transfer") Shares only (i) by operation of law pursuant to the death, divorce, insolvency, bankruptcy, or adjudicated incompetence of the Shareholder; or (ii) under other limited circumstances, with the consent of the Board (which may be withheld in its sole discretion and is expected to be granted, if at all, only under extenuating circumstances). Notice to the Fund of any proposed transfer must include evidence satisfactory to the Board that the proposed transferee, at the time of the transfer, meets any requirements imposed by the Fund with respect to investor eligibility and suitability. See "Eligible investors." Such notice of a proposed transfer of Shares must also be accompanied by properly completed subscription documents in respect of the proposed transferee. In addition, in connection with any request to transfer Shares, the Fund may require the Shareholder requesting the transfer to obtain, at the Shareholder's expense, an opinion of counsel selected by the Fund as to such matters as the Fund may reasonably request.

Each transferring Shareholder and transferee may be charged reasonable expenses, including attorneys' and accountants' fees, incurred by the Fund in connection with the transfer. See "*Transfers of Shares*."

The Fund does not currently intend to list Shares on any exchange. As a result, Shareholders should look to the Fund's repurchase offer as their sole means of liquidating their investment, which may be limited as described above. Additional information regarding Share repurchases is set forth under "Repurchase of Shares." Accordingly, you should consider that you may not have access to the funds you invest in the Fund for an indefinite period of time

Taxes....

The Fund has elected to be treated as a corporation for federal income tax purposes, and it further intends to elect to be treated, and expects each year to qualify as a RIC for U.S. federal income tax purposes. As such, the Fund generally will not be subject to U.S. federal corporate income tax, provided that it distributes all of its net taxable income and gains each year.

For a discussion of certain tax risks and considerations relating to an investment in the Fund see "Tax Reports" below and "Certain U.S. federal income tax considerations."

Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the specific U.S. federal, state, local, U.S. and non-U.S. tax consequences, including applicable tax reporting requirements.

Tax reports.....

The Fund will distribute to its Shareholders, after the end of each calendar year, IRS Forms 1099-DIV detailing the amounts includible in such Shareholder's taxable income for such year as ordinary income, qualified dividend income and long-term capital gains. Dividends and other taxable distributions are taxable to the Fund's Shareholders even if they are reinvested in additional Shares pursuant to the DRIP.

Reports to Shareholders	Shareholders will receive an unaudited semi-annual and an audited annual report within 60 days after the close of the period for which the report is being made, or as otherwise required by the Investment Company Act. Shareholders also will be sent reports regarding the Fund's operations each quarter. See "Reports to Shareholders."
Fiscal and tax year	The Fund's fiscal year is the 12-month period ending on October 31. The Fund's taxable year is the 12-month period ending on October 31.
Term	The Fund's term is perpetual; however, the Fund may be dissolved upon approval of a majority of the Trustees in accordance with the Fund's Declaration of Trust.

#### SUMMARY OF FUND EXPENSES

The following table illustrates the expenses and fees that the Fund expects to incur and that Shareholders can expect to bear directly or indirectly.

SHAREHOLDER TRANSACTION EXPENSES	CLASS I	CLASS A
Shareholder Fees		
Maximum Sales Load (as a percentage of subscription amount) <sup>(1)</sup>	None	2.00%
Maximum Early Repurchase Fee (as a percentage of repurchased amount) $^{(2)}$	2.00%	2.00%
ANNUAL EXPENSES (as a percentage of the Fund's net assets)	CLASS I	CLASS A
Investment Management Fee <sup>(3)</sup>	1.00%	1.00%
Incentive Fees <sup>(4)</sup>	0.00%	0.00%
Distribution and Servicing Fee <sup>(5)</sup>	None	0.75%
Dividend Expense, Borrowing Costs and Brokerage Expense on Securities Sold Short <sup>(6)</sup>	1.17%	1.17%
Other Expenses <sup>(6)</sup>	0.66%	0.66%
Total Annual Expenses	2.83%	3.58%
Fee Waiver and/or Expense Reimbursement <sup>(7)</sup>	(0.26%)	(0.26%)
Total Annual Expenses After Expense Waiver	2.57%	3.32%

- (1) Subscriptions for Class A Shares are sold subject to a Sales Load of up to 2.00% of the subscription amount. The Sales Load payable by each investor depends upon the amount invested by such investor in Class A Shares. No Sales Load may be charged without the consent of the Distributor.
- (2) A 2.00% early repurchase fee payable to the Fund will be charged with respect to the repurchase of a Shareholder's Shares at any time prior to the day immediately preceding the one-year anniversary of a Shareholder's purchase of the Shares (on a "first in first out" basis). An early repurchase fee payable by a Shareholder may be waived by the Fund, in circumstances where the Board determines that doing so is in the best interests of the Fund and in a manner as will not discriminate unfairly against any Shareholder. The early repurchase fee will be retained by the Fund for the benefit of the remaining shareholders. See "Repurchases of Shares."
- (3) The Fund pays the Adviser an Investment Management Fee at the annual rate of 1.00%, accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears based upon the Fund's average daily net assets. The Investment Management Fee is paid to the Adviser out of the Fund's assets, and therefore decreases the net profits or increases the net losses of the Fund. For purposes of determining the Investment Management Fee payable to the Adviser for any month, net assets are calculated prior to any reduction for any fees and expenses of the Fund for that month, including, without limitation, the Investment Management Fee payable to the Adviser for that month.
- Promptly after the end of each fiscal year of the Fund, the Fund pays to the Adviser the Incentive Fee in an amount equal to 20.00% of the amount by which the Fund's net profits attributable to each class of Shares for all Performance Periods ending within or coterminous with the close of such fiscal year exceed the balance of the loss carryforward account maintained in respect of such class, without duplication for any Incentive Fee paid by the Fund in respect of such class during such fiscal year. The Fund also pays the Adviser the Incentive Fee in the event that a Performance Period ends in connection with the repurchase of Shares by the Fund or a dividend or other distribution payable by the Fund, in each case on the date as of which the Fund's net asset value attributable to any class is calculated for such purpose; provided that only that portion of the Incentive Fee that is attributable to (i) the Shares being repurchased (not taking into account any proceeds from any contemporaneous issuance of Shares, by reinvestment of dividends and other distributions or otherwise), or (ii) the dividend or other distribution being paid by the Fund and not being reinvested in Shares of the Fund, will be paid to the Adviser for such Performance Period. The Incentive Fee, if any, is calculated and accrued on each date that the Fund calculates its net asset value. See "Incentive Fee."
- (5) The Fund has adopted a distribution and service plan for Class I and Class A Shares. Under the Distribution and Service Plan, investors may pay a Distribution and Servicing Fee of up to 0.75% on an annualized basis of the aggregate net assets of the Fund attributable to Class A Shares to the Fund's Distributor or other qualified recipients. Payment of the Distribution and Servicing Fee is governed by the Fund's Distribution and Servicing Plan, which, subject to receipt of an exemptive order issued by the SEC, will be adopted by the Fund with respect to Class A Shares in compliance with Rule 12b-1 under the Investment Company Act. See "Distribution and Servicing Plan."
- (6) "Dividend Expense, Borrowing Costs and Brokerage Expense on Securities Sold Short" and "Other Expenses" are based on estimated amounts for the current fiscal year. "Other Expenses" include, among other things, professional fees and other expenses that the Fund will bear, including organization and offering expenses and fees and expenses of the Administrator, Transfer Agent and custodian. Organization and offering expenses include expenses incurred in the Fund's initial formation and its continuous offering and are estimated to be approximately \$753,024 or 0.33% of net assets.

The Adviser has contractually entered into an Expense Limitation and Reimbursement Agreement with the Fund to limit for a period of three years following the commencement of the Fund's operations (the "Limitation Period") the amount of "Specified Expenses" (as defined below) borne by the Fund in respect of Class I Shares and Class A Shares during the Limitation Period to an amount not to exceed 0.65% per annum of the Fund's net assets attributable to such Class (the "Expense Cap"). "Specified Expenses" is defined to include all expenses incurred in the business of the Fund (excluding (i) the Investment Management Fee; (ii) the Incentive Fee; (iii) Distribution and Servicing Fees in respect of any class of Shares; (iv) brokerage costs; (v) certain transaction-related expenses, including those incurred in connection with effecting short sales; (vi) interest payments; (vii) fees and expenses incurred in connection with a credit facility, if any, obtained by the Fund; (viii) taxes; and (ix) extraordinary expenses). To the extent that the Adviser bears Specified Expenses in respect of a class of Shares, the Adviser may receive reimbursement for any expense amounts that were previously waived by the Adviser, for a period not to exceed three years from the date on which such expenses were waived by the Adviser, even if such reimbursement occurs after the termination of the Limitation Period, provided that the Fund may only make a repayment to the Adviser if such repayment does not cause the Fund's expense ratio (after the repayment is taken into account) to exceed the lesser of: (1) the Expense Cap in place at the time such amounts were waived by the Adviser; or (2) the Fund's current Expense Cap. The Adviser has contractually agreed that it shall waive 0.25% of the investment advisory fees payable to it through, July 1, 2026. The waiver of the Investment Management Fee under the Management Fee Waiver Agreement is not subject to recoupment by the Adviser.

The purpose of the table above is to assist prospective investors in understanding the various fees and expenses Shareholders will bear directly or indirectly. For a more complete description of the various fees and expenses of the Fund, see "Investment Management Fee," "Administration," "Custodian," "Fund expenses," "Repurchases of Shares" and "Purchasing Shares."

The following example is intended to help you compare the cost of investing in the Fund with the cost of investing in other funds. The example assumes that all distributions are reinvested at net asset value and that the percentage amounts listed under Total Annual Expenses remain the same in the years shown. The example amounts assume that (i) the Expense Limitation and Reimbursement Agreement remains in effect for a period of three years following the commencement of the Fund's operations; (ii) the Investment Management Fee waiver is in effect through July 1, 2026; and (iii) offering costs are amortized and accrued in year 1. The assumption in the hypothetical example of a 5% annual return is required by regulation of the SEC applicable to all registered investment companies. The assumed 5% annual return is not a prediction of, and does not represent, the projected or actual performance of Shares.

**EXAMPLE:** You would pay the following expenses based on a \$1,000 investment in the Fund, assuming a 5% annual return:

	1 YEAR	3 YEARS	5 YEARS	10 YEARS
CLASS I	\$ 26	\$ 78	\$ 133	\$ 283
CLASS A	\$ 53	\$ 118	\$ 186	\$ 367

The example is based on the annual fees and expenses set out on the table above and should not be considered a representation of future expenses. Actual expenses may be greater or less than those shown. Moreover, the rate of return of the Fund may be greater or less than the hypothetical 5% return used in the example. A greater rate of return than that used in the example would increase the dollar amount of the asset-based fees paid by the Fund, as well as the effect of the Incentive Fee.

#### **USE OF PROCEEDS**

The proceeds from the sale of Shares of the Fund, not including the amount of any Sales Loads and the Fund's fees and expenses (including, without limitation, offering expenses), will be invested by the Fund in accordance with the Fund's investment objective and strategies within three months after receipt of such proceeds; however, changes in market conditions could result in the Fund's anticipated investment period extending as long as six months. Such proceeds will be invested together with any interest earned in the Fund's account with the Custodian prior to the closing of the applicable offering. See "Purchasing Shares — Purchase terms."

Subject to applicable law, the Fund may maintain a portion of its assets in cash or such short-term securities or money market funds to meet operational needs, for temporary defensive purposes, or to maintain liquidity. The Fund may be prevented from achieving its objective during any period in which the Fund's assets are not substantially invested in accordance with its principal investment strategies.

#### INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND STRATEGIES

# Investment objective and strategies

The Fund's investment objective is to achieve maximum total return. The Fund seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing primarily in equity securities. Under normal circumstances, the Fund invests at least 80% of its net assets, plus any borrowings for investment purposes, in equity securities. For purposes of the Fund's 80% investment policy, "equity securities" means common and preferred stocks (including investments in initial public offerings ("IPOs")), convertible securities, warrants and rights. To the extent the Fund invests in derivative or other strategic instruments that have similar economic characteristics to equity securities, the market value of such instruments will be included for purposes of calculating the Fund's compliance with its 80% investment policy. The Fund includes cash or money market instruments earmarked or otherwise held as collateral for derivative instruments that have similar economic characteristics to equity securities towards its 80% investment requirement. The Fund may invest in equity securities without restriction as to market capitalization. Under extraordinary circumstances, the Fund may choose to acquire substantial or control stakes in public companies.

The Adviser's approach involves taking long and short positions in equity securities. The majority of the Fund's long portfolio will be invested in growing companies with high returns on capital and high barriers to competition that SEG believes are trading at a discount to their intrinsic value. These companies have been researched for several years before investment and are purchased with an expectation of a multi-year holding period. The long portfolio also includes investments in more opportunistic situations that may be held for shorter periods of time. In the short portfolio, SEG attempts to identify companies that are exposed to ongoing competitive pressures with poor returns on capital and deteriorating fundamentals. The short positions are generally not selected as direct hedges to the long positions, although at times, the Adviser may elect to do so. In addition to taking short positions on individual securities, the short portfolio may also include baskets of securities and/or shorts on indices.

The Fund may also create short positions in U.S. and international markets for currencies, interest rates, credit, agricultural and energy products and precious, base and ferrous metals by employing swaps, futures, options on futures and forward contracts in those markets. SEG generally expects to utilize these instruments to hedge against macro movements in the markets and/or to seek to capitalize on market dislocations.

Under normal market circumstances, the Fund expects to be primarily invested in U.S. domiciled issuers, although the Fund may invest its assets in investments outside of the U.S., including up to 15% of its assets in emerging markets. Such strategies may involve exposure to foreign currencies, and the Fund may seek to hedge all or a portion of the Fund's foreign currency risk.

The Fund is permitted to borrow money or issue debt securities in an amount up to 331/3% of its total assets in accordance with the Investment Company Act. The Fund may establish a credit line to borrow money for a range of purposes, including to satisfy tender requests, to manage timing issues in connection with the inflows of additional capital and the acquisition of Fund investments and to otherwise provide the Fund with liquidity. There is no assurance, however, that the Fund will be able to timely repay any borrowings under such credit line, which may result in the Fund incurring leverage on its portfolio investments from time to time. To enhance the Fund's liquidity, particularly in times of possible net outflows through the repurchase of Shares by periodic tender offers to Shareholders, the Adviser may sell certain of the Fund's assets.

## The Fund's investment strategy includes:

Attractive Businesses. The Adviser focuses on investing opportunistically in businesses when it believes attractive long-term returns can be achieved. The Investment Adviser expects the majority of the Fund's long portfolio normally to be comprised of these types of investments. The Adviser defines attractive businesses as those that have achieved leading and defensible market positions through the creation of enduring franchise value. They are, in the view of the Adviser, both well positioned for long-term growth and resilient in difficult economic environments. These companies often are able to post revenue growth in conjunction with stable or expanding profit margins and are typically able to fund their growth internally. The Adviser employs extensive research and fundamental analysis equity research to identify these investment opportunities.

Equities with Attractive Risk/Reward Dynamics. The Adviser seeks to invest a portion of the Fund's assets opportunistically in equity securities that, despite attractive prospects, have higher perceived risk/reward ratios. Relying on what it believes to be its core competency, rigorous equity research, the Adviser will seek to identify and exploit these opportunities.

Short Sales. In the course of its investment research, the Adviser may identify companies with deteriorating fundamentals, such as declining market share, contracting margins, product obsolescence or unfavorable industry or regulatory developments. In instances where the Adviser believes that a clear catalyst for price depreciation exists, it may choose to sell short the equity securities of those companies. In addition, when it deems appropriate, the Adviser may attempt to employ short sales as a hedge against its long positions. Selling securities short entails certain risks.

Derivatives. The Adviser may seek to obtain exposure to particular issuers or securities through derivative transactions, including, without limitation, security-based swaps (including total return swaps and custom basket swaps), contracts for difference ("CFDs"), futures, options on futures, swaps and other types of derivative arrangements. These instruments may be used, for example, when the underlying security is illiquid, unavailable for direct investment or available only on less attractive terms. Options trading may be used in lieu of or in addition to straight equity purchases or sales. Investing in options entails certain risks. While the Adviser may trade in options on individual equities as well as on indices, it does not anticipate that options trading will represent a significant part of its investment strategy. Derivatives are subject to various types of risk.

Control Stakes. Under extraordinary circumstances, the Fund may acquire substantial or control stakes in public companies. To the extent that the Fund obtains a control position or other substantial position in any public company, it may be required to make filings concerning its holdings with the SEC and may become subject to other regulatory restrictions that could limit the ability of the Fund to dispose of its holdings at the times and in the manner the Fund would prefer. Violations of these regulatory requirements could subject the Fund to significant liabilities.

Leverage. The Fund may employ leverage, including margin, in the discretion of the Adviser. To the extent permitted by the Investment Company Act, the Fund may borrow for investment purposes, to satisfy repurchase requests and to otherwise provide the Fund with liquidity. While the use of leverage can substantially improve the return on invested capital, leverage also may significantly increase the impact of adverse movements in the value of portfolio securities on the net asset value of the Fund's assets.

Cash Positions. The Adviser may maintain cash positions when, in its opinion, market conditions preclude investment opportunities meeting the standards it has established for investments. Cash positions may include money market mutual funds, commercial paper, repurchase agreements, certificates of deposit and bankers' acceptances and other money market instruments deemed appropriate by the Adviser.

Bonds and Other Fixed-Income Securities. The Fund primarily invests in equity securities, as described in this Prospectus. The Adviser, however, may invest a portion of the Fund's assets in bonds and other fixed-income securities rated, at the time of purchase, investment grade or, if unrated, determined to be of comparable quality by the Adviser. There are no restrictions on the dollar-weighted average maturity or average effective duration of the Fund's fixed-income portfolio or on the maturities or durations of the individual fixed-income securities the Fund may purchase. The Fund may invest in these securities when the Adviser believes that such securities offer opportunities for capital appreciation (or capital depreciation in the case of short positions) and may also invest in these securities for temporary defensive purposes and to maintain liquidity.

Convertible Securities, Preferred Stocks, Warrants and Rights. The Adviser may invest a portion of the Fund's assets in convertible securities, preferred stock, warrants and rights. Convertible securities may be debt securities or preferred stock with a conversion feature. Traditionally, convertible securities have paid dividends or interest at rates higher than common stocks but lower than non-convertible fixed income securities. They generally participate in the appreciation or depreciation of the underlying stock into which they are convertible, but to a lesser degree. In recent years, convertibles have been developed which combine higher or lower current income with options and other features. Generally, preferred stock has a specified dividend and ranks after bonds and before common stocks in its claim on income for dividend payments and on assets should the entity holding such assets be liquidated. Warrants are options to buy a stated number of shares of common stock at a specified price any time during the life of the warrants (generally two or more years). Rights represent a preemptive right of shareholders to purchase additional shares of a stock at the time of a new issuance before the stock is offered to the general public, allowing the shareholder to retain the same ownership percentage after the new stock offering.

Currency Hedging. The base currency of the Fund is U.S. dollars. The Fund's assets may be invested in investments denominated in various other currencies and in other financial instruments the prices of which are determined with reference to such foreign currencies. The Adviser may seek to hedge the Fund's foreign currency exposure through the use of spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and other methods of reducing exposure to currency fluctuations, including options or other derivatives including swaps.

Less Liquid Securities. In the course of its investment research, the Adviser may identify attractive, but relatively illiquid securities, certain of which may be restricted in their transferability under the securities laws of its jurisdiction. In situations where the Adviser believes that the potential for price appreciation and improvements in liquidity outweigh the discount that should be accorded to illiquid securities, it may elect to establish a position in some of these securities over time.

*Portfolio Turnover*. The Fund's investment approach emphasizes active management of the Fund's portfolio. This investment approach may result in portfolio turnover and brokerage commission expenses that may exceed those of other investment companies.

Except as otherwise indicated, the Fund may change its investment objective and any of its investment policies, restrictions, strategies, and techniques without Shareholder approval. The investment objective of the Fund is not a fundamental policy of the Fund and, although it has no current intention to do so, may be changed by the Board of Trustees of the Fund without the vote of a majority (as defined by the Investment Company Act) of the Fund's outstanding Shares so long as (i) the Fund provides at least 60 days' prior notice of such policy change, (ii) the Fund conducts a tender or repurchase offer at its net asset value in advance of the change, and (iii) the tender or repurchase offer is not oversubscribed.

No guarantee or representation is made that the investment program of the Fund will be successful or that the Fund will achieve its investment objective.

#### TYPES OF INVESTMENTS AND RELATED RISK FACTORS

## **GENERAL RISKS**

The following are certain risk factors that relate to the operations and terms of the Fund. These considerations, which do not purport to be a complete description of any of the particular risks referred to or a complete list of all risks involved in an investment in the Fund, should be carefully evaluated before determining whether to invest in the Fund.

The Shares are speculative and illiquid securities involving substantial risk of loss. An investment in the Fund is appropriate only for those investors who do not require a liquid investment, for whom an investment in the Fund does not constitute a complete investment program, and who fully understand and are capable of assuming the risks of an investment in the Fund.

#### Investment risk

All investments risk the loss of capital. An investment in the Fund involves a high degree of risk, including the risk that the Shareholder's entire investment may be lost. The value of the Fund's assets should be expected to fluctuate. To the extent that the Fund's portfolio is concentrated in securities of a single issuer or issuers in a single sector, the risk of any investment decision is increased. The Fund's use of leverage is likely to cause the Fund's assets to appreciate or depreciate at a greater rate than if leverage were not used. In addition, the Fund's use of leverage, short sales or derivative transactions can result in significant losses to the Fund.

No assurance can be given that the Fund's investment objective will be achieved. The Fund's performance depends upon the Adviser's selection of investments and the performance of the investments. The identification of investment opportunities is a difficult task, and there can be no assurance that such opportunities will be successfully recognized. While the Adviser endeavors to achieve the Fund's investment objective, there can be no assurance that the Fund will not incur losses. The value of the Fund's investments can be reduced by risks arising from national or international economic conditions, volatility in the global equity, currency, real estate and fixed-income markets, shifts in macro-economic fundamentals, the risks of short sales, the risks of leverage, the potential illiquidity of securities and derivative instruments, the risk of loss from counterparty defaults and the risk of borrowing to meet withdrawal requests, as well as acts of God, uninsurable losses, war, terrorism, earthquakes, pandemics, hurricanes or floods and other factors which are beyond the control of the Fund. No assurance can be given that: (i) the Fund's investment program, strategy, decisions and activities will be successful; (ii) the Fund will achieve its return expectations; (iii) the Fund will achieve any return of capital invested; or (iv) Shareholders will not suffer losses from an investment in the Fund. The Fund's results may vary substantially over time.

# Closed-end fund; liquidity limited to periodic repurchases of Shares

The Fund is a non-diversified, closed-end management investment company designed primarily for long-term investors, and is not intended to be a trading vehicle. The Fund is not a liquid investment and you should not invest in this Fund if you need a liquid investment. Closed-end funds differ from open-end management investment companies (commonly known as mutual funds) in that investors in a closed-end fund do not have the right to redeem their shares on a daily basis at a price based on net asset value. In order to be able to meet daily redemption requests, mutual funds are subject to more stringent liquidity requirements than closed-end funds. In particular, a mutual fund generally may not invest more than 15% of its net assets in illiquid securities.

The Fund does not intend to list its Shares for trading on any national securities exchange. There is no secondary trading market for Shares, and none is expected to develop. Shares are, therefore, not readily marketable. Because the Fund is a closed-end investment company, its Shares are not redeemable at the option of Shareholders and they are not exchangeable for Shares of any other fund. Although the Board may, in its sole discretion, cause the Fund to offer to repurchase outstanding Shares at their net asset value (after all applicable fees), or, in certain circumstances, at a discount, and the Adviser intends to recommend that, in normal market circumstances, the Board conduct repurchase offers of no more than 25% of the Fund's net assets quarterly on or about each January 1, April 1, July 1 and October 1. Shares are considerably less liquid than shares of funds that trade on a stock exchange, or shares of open-end registered investment companies. It is possible that the Fund may be unable to repurchase all of the Shares that an investor tenders due to the illiquidity of the Fund's investments or if the Shareholders request the Fund to repurchase more Shares than the Fund is then offering to repurchase. There can be no assurance that the Fund will conduct repurchase offers in any particular period and Shareholders may be unable to tender Shares for repurchase for an indefinite period of time.

There will be a period of time between the date as of which Shareholders must submit a request to have their Shares repurchased and the date they can expect to receive payment for their Shares from the Fund. Shareholders whose Shares are accepted for repurchase bear the risk that the Fund's net asset value may fluctuate significantly between the time that they submit their repurchase requests and the date as of which such Shares are valued for purposes of such repurchase. Shareholders will have to decide whether to request that the Fund repurchase their Shares without the benefit of having current information regarding the value of Shares on a date proximate to the date on which Shares are valued by the Fund for purposes of effecting such repurchases. See "Repurchases of Shares."

In considering whether to repurchase Shares during periods of financial market stress, the Board may offer to repurchase Shares at a discount to their prevailing net asset value that appropriately reflects market conditions, subject to applicable law. Further, repurchases of Shares, if any, may be suspended, postponed or terminated by the Board under certain circumstances. See "Repurchases of Shares — Periodic repurchases." An investment in the Fund is suitable only for investors who can bear the risks associated with the limited liquidity of Shares and the underlying investments of the Fund. Additionally, because Shares are not listed on any securities exchange, the Fund is not required, and does not intend, to hold annual meetings of its Shareholders unless called for under the provisions of the Investment Company Act.

## **No Operating History**

The Fund is a newly organized, non-diversified, closed-end management investment company with no operating history. The Fund does not have any historical financial statements or other meaningful operating or financial data on which potential investors may evaluate the Fund and its performance.

## Payment in-kind for repurchased Shares

The Fund generally expects to satisfy a Shareholder's repurchase request. See "Repurchases of Shares — Periodic repurchases." However, there can be no assurance that the Fund will have sufficient cash to pay for Shares that are being repurchased or that it will be able to liquidate investments at favorable prices to pay for repurchased Shares. The Fund has the right to distribute securities as payment for repurchased Shares in unusual circumstances, including if making a cash payment would result in a material adverse effect on the Fund. For example, the Fund may receive securities from a Fund investment that are illiquid or difficult to value. In such circumstances, the Adviser would seek to dispose of these securities in a manner that is in the best interests of the Fund, which may include a distribution in-kind to the Fund's Shareholders. In the event that the Fund makes such a distribution of securities, Shareholders will bear any risks of the distributed securities and may be required to pay a brokerage commission or other costs in order to dispose of such securities.

## **Non-Diversified Status**

The Fund is a "non-diversified" management investment company. Thus, there are no percentage limitations imposed by the Investment Company Act on the Fund's assets that may be invested, directly or indirectly, in the securities of any one issuer. Consequently, if one or more Fund investments are allocated a relatively large percentage of the Fund's assets, losses suffered by such Fund investments could result in a higher reduction in the Fund's capital than if such capital had been more proportionately allocated among a larger number of investments. The Fund may also be more susceptible to any single economic or regulatory occurrence than a diversified investment company. However, the Fund will be subject to diversification requirements applicable to RICs under the Code. See "Certain U.S. federal income tax considerations."

## Legal, tax and regulatory risks

Legal and regulatory changes that could occur during the life of the Fund may adversely impact the performance of the Fund. The regulation of the U.S. and non-U.S. securities and futures markets and investment funds has undergone substantial change in recent years and such change may continue. Greater regulatory scrutiny may increase the exposure of the Fund and the Adviser to potential liabilities. Increased regulatory oversight also can impose administrative burdens and costs on the Fund and the Adviser, including, without limitation, responding to examinations or investigations and implementing new policies and procedures.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the "Dodd-Frank Act") and related regulatory developments established financial oversight standards and resulted in significant revisions to the U.S. financial regulatory framework and the operation of financial institutions. The Dodd-Frank Act includes provisions regarding, among other things, the comprehensive regulation of the over-the-counter derivatives market, the identification, monitoring and regulation of systemic risks to financial markets and the regulation of proprietary trading and investment activity of banking institutions. The continued implementation of the Dodd-Frank Act and other similar and follow-on regulations could affect, among other things, financial consumer protection, proprietary trading, registration of investment advisers and the trading and use of derivative instruments and, therefore, could adversely affect the Fund or investments made by the Fund. There can be no assurance that such regulation will not have a material adverse effect on the Fund, increase transaction, operations, legal and/or regulatory compliance costs, significantly reduce the profitability of the Fund or impair the ability of the Fund to achieve its investment objective.

Rule 18f-4 under the Investment Company Act permits, among others, closed-end funds such as the Fund to enter into certain derivatives transactions notwithstanding the prohibitions and restrictions on the issuance of senior securities under Section 18 of the Investment Company Act, provided that the closed-end fund complies with the conditions of the rule, including establishing a comprehensive derivatives risk management program and complying with certain value-at-risk leverage limits, requirements and compliance and disclosure obligations, subject to certain exceptions.

As of the date hereof, there is uncertainty with respect to legislation, regulation and government policy at the federal, state and local levels, notably with respect to U.S. trade, fiscal, tax, healthcare, immigration, foreign and government regulatory policy. Recent events have created a climate of heightened uncertainty and introduced difficult-to-quantify macroeconomic and geopolitical risks with potentially far-reaching implications. There has been a corresponding meaningful increase in the uncertainty surrounding interest rates, tax rates, inflation, foreign exchange rates, trade volumes, trade wars and fiscal and monetary policy. To the extent the U.S. Congress or current administration implements additional changes to U.S. policy, those changes may impact, among other things, the U.S. and global economy, international trade and relations, unemployment, immigration, healthcare, the U.S. regulatory environment and inflation, among other areas. Until any additional policy changes are finalized, it cannot be known whether the Fund and its investments or future investments may be positively or negatively affected, or the impact of continuing uncertainty.

## Substantial repurchases

Substantial requests for the Fund to repurchase Shares could require the Fund to liquidate certain of its investments more rapidly than otherwise desirable in order to raise cash to fund the repurchases and achieve a market position appropriately reflecting a smaller asset base. This could have a material adverse effect on the value of the Shares. See "General risks — Closed-end fund; liquidity limited to periodic repurchases of Shares."

## **Temporary Investments**

Delays in investing the net proceeds of the offering of Shares may impair the Fund's performance. The Fund cannot assure you it will be able to identify any investments that meet its investment objective or that any investment that the Fund makes will produce a positive return. The Fund may be unable to invest the net proceeds of the Fund's offering on acceptable terms within the time period that the Fund anticipates or at all, which could harm the Fund's financial condition and operating results.

Before making investments, the Fund may invest the net proceeds of the Fund's offering primarily in cash, cash equivalents, U.S. government securities, money market funds, repurchase agreements, and other high-quality debt instruments maturing in one year or less from the time of investment ("Temporary Investments"). This will produce returns that are significantly lower than the returns that the Fund expects to achieve when the Fund's portfolio is fully invested in securities meeting the Fund's investment objective. As a result, any distributions that the Fund pays while the Fund's portfolio is not fully invested in securities meeting its investment objective may be lower than the distributions that the Fund may be able to pay when the Fund portfolio is fully invested in securities meeting the Fund's investment objective.

## Dilution from subsequent offerings of Shares

The Fund may accept additional subscriptions for Shares as determined by the Board, in its sole discretion. Additional purchases will dilute the indirect interests of existing Shareholders in the Fund's investments prior to such purchases, which could have an adverse impact on the existing Shareholders' interests in the Fund if subsequent Fund investments underperform the prior investments. New purchases of Shares will dilute the benefit of such compensation structures to existing Shareholders.

## Valuations of Fund investments; valuations subject to adjustment

The valuations upon which the Fund determines its daily net asset value and the net asset value per Share may be subject to later adjustment or revision. For example, fiscal year-end net asset value calculations of the Fund investments may be revised as a result of audits by their independent auditors. Other adjustments may occur from time to time. Because such adjustments or revisions, whether increasing or decreasing the net asset value of the Fund at the time they occur, relate to information available only at the time of the adjustment or revision, the adjustment or revision may not affect the amount of the repurchase proceeds of the Fund received by Shareholders who had their Shares repurchased prior to such adjustments and received their repurchase proceeds, subject to the ability of the Fund to adjust or recoup the repurchase proceeds received by Shareholders under certain circumstances as described in "Repurchases of Shares — Periodic repurchases." As a result, to the extent that such subsequently adjusted valuations or revisions to the net asset value of a Fund investment adversely affects the Fund's net asset value, the outstanding Shares may be adversely affected by prior repurchases to the benefit of Shareholders who had their Shares repurchased at a net asset value higher than the adjusted amount. Conversely, any increases in the net asset value resulting from such subsequently adjusted valuations may be entirely for the benefit of the outstanding Shares and to the detriment of Shareholders who previously had their Shares repurchased at a net asset value lower than the adjusted amount. The same principles apply to the purchase of Shares. New Shareholders may be affected in a similar way.

The valuations of Shares may be significantly affected by numerous factors, some of which are beyond the Fund's control and may not be directly related to the Fund's operating performance. These factors include:

- changes in regulatory policies or tax guidelines;
- changes in earnings or variations in operating results;
- changes in the value of the Fund investments;
- changes in accounting guidelines governing valuation of the Fund investments;
- any shortfall in revenue or net income or any increase in losses from levels expected by investors;
- departure of the Adviser or certain of its respective key personnel;
- general economic trends and other external factors; and
- loss of a major funding source.

# Reporting requirements

Shareholders who beneficially own Shares that constitute more than 5% or 10% of the Fund's Shares are subject to certain requirements under the Exchange Act and the rules promulgated thereunder. These include requirements to file certain reports with the SEC. The Fund has no obligation to file such reports on behalf of such Shareholders or to notify Shareholders that such reports are required to be made. Shareholders who may be subject to such requirements should consult with their legal advisors.

#### BUSINESS AND STRUCTURE RELATED RISKS

# Amount or frequency of distributions not guaranteed

The Fund expects to pay distributions out of assets legally available for distribution from time to time, at the sole discretion of the Board. Nevertheless, the Fund cannot assure Shareholders that the Fund will achieve investment results that will allow the Fund to make a specified level of cash distributions or year-to-year increases in cash distributions. The Fund's ability to pay distributions may be adversely affected by the impact of the risks described in this Prospectus. All distributions will depend on the Fund's earnings, its net investment income, its financial condition, and such other factors as the Board may deem relevant from time to time.

In the event that the Fund encounters delays in locating suitable investment opportunities, the Fund may return all or a substantial portion of the proceeds from the offering of Shares in anticipation of future cash flow, which may constitute a return of your capital and will lower your tax basis in your Shares. A return of capital generally is a return of your investment rather than a return of earnings or gains derived from the Fund's investment activities and will be made after deduction of the fees and expenses payable in connection with the proceeds from the offering of Shares, including any fees payable to the Adviser.

## Cybersecurity risk

As part of its business, the Adviser processes, stores and transmits large amounts of electronic information, including information relating to the transactions of the Fund and personally identifiable information of the Shareholders. Similarly, service providers of the Adviser or the Fund, especially the Administrator, may process, store and transmit such information. The Adviser has procedures and systems in place that they believe are reasonably designed to protect such information and prevent data loss and security breaches. However, such measures cannot provide absolute security. The techniques used to obtain unauthorized access to data, disable or degrade service, or sabotage systems change frequently and may be difficult to detect for long periods of time. Hardware or software acquired from third parties may contain defects in design or manufacture or other problems that could unexpectedly compromise information security. Network connected services provided by third parties to the Adviser may be susceptible to compromise, leading to a breach of the Adviser's networks. The Adviser's systems or facilities may be susceptible to employee error or malfeasance, government surveillance, or other security threats. Online services provided by the Adviser to the Shareholders may also be susceptible to compromise. Breach of the Adviser's information systems may cause information relating to the transactions of the Fund and personally identifiable information of the Shareholders to be lost or improperly accessed, used or disclosed.

The service providers of the Adviser and the Fund are subject to the same electronic information security threats as the Adviser. If a service provider fails to adopt or adhere to adequate data security policies, or in the event of a breach of its networks, information relating to the transactions of the Fund and personally identifiable information of the Shareholders may be lost or improperly accessed, used or disclosed.

The loss or improper access, use or disclosure of the Adviser's or the Fund's proprietary information may cause the Adviser or the Fund to suffer, among other things, financial loss, the disruption of its business, liability to third parties, regulatory intervention or reputational damage. Any of the foregoing events could have a material adverse effect on the Fund and the Shareholders' investments therein.

## Fluctuations in performance

The Fund could experience fluctuations in its performance due to a number of factors, including, but not limited to, the Fund's ability or inability to make investments in companies that meet the Fund's investment criteria, the interest rate payable on the debt securities the Fund acquires, the level of the Fund's expenses, variations in and the timing of the recognition of realized and unrealized gains or losses, the degree to which the Fund encounters competition in its markets and general economic conditions. As a result of these factors, results for any previous period should not be relied upon as being indicative of performance in future periods.

#### Reliance on the Adviser

The Adviser has full discretionary authority to identify, structure, allocate, execute, administer, monitor and liquidate Fund investments and, in doing so, has no responsibility to consult with any Shareholder. Accordingly, an investor in the Fund must rely upon the abilities of the Adviser, and no person should invest in the Fund unless such person is willing to entrust all aspects of the investment decisions of the Fund to the Adviser. Shareholders will not receive or otherwise be privy to due diligence or risk information prepared by or for the Adviser in respect of the Fund investments. The Adviser has the authority and responsibility for asset allocation, the selection of Fund investments and all other investment decisions for the Fund. The success of the Fund depends upon the ability of the Adviser to develop and implement investment strategies that achieve the investment objective of the Fund. Shareholders have no right or power to participate in the management or control of the Fund or the Fund investments, or the terms of any such investments. There can be no assurance that the Adviser will be able to select or implement successful strategies or achieve its investment objective. Additionally, past performance is not indicative of future results or performance of any account managed by SEG, or of the Fund.

## Reliance on the key personnel

The Fund will depend on the investment expertise, skill and network of business contacts of the Adviser. The Adviser will evaluate, negotiate, structure, execute, monitor and service Fund investments. The Fund's future success will depend to a significant extent on the continued service and coordination of the Adviser and its investment management team. The departure of certain key personnel of the Adviser or its affiliates could have a material adverse effect on the Fund's ability to achieve its investment objective.

The Fund's ability to achieve its investment objective depends on the Adviser's ability to identify, analyze, invest in, finance and monitor investments that meet the Fund's investment criteria. The Adviser's capabilities in structuring the investment process, providing competent, attentive and efficient services to the Fund, and facilitating access to financing on acceptable terms depend on the employment of investment professionals in an adequate number and of adequate sophistication to match the corresponding flow of transactions. To achieve the Fund's investment objective, the Adviser may need to hire, train, supervise and manage new investment professionals to participate in the Fund's investment selection and monitoring process. The Adviser may not be able to find investment professionals in a timely manner or at all. Failure to support the Fund's investment process could have a material adverse effect on the Fund's business, financial condition and results of operations.

It is anticipated that the Adviser will depend on the relationships of it and of the Adviser's affiliates, and the Fund will rely to a significant extent upon these relationships to provide the Fund with potential investment opportunities. If the Adviser or its affiliates fail to maintain their existing relationships or develop new relationships with other sponsors or sources of investment opportunities, the Fund may not be able to grow its investment portfolio. In addition, individuals with whom the Adviser and its affiliates have relationships are not obligated to provide the Fund, the Adviser or any of their affiliates with investment opportunities, and, therefore, there is no assurance that such relationships will generate investment opportunities for the Fund.

## Uncertain source and quantity of funding

Proceeds from the sale of Shares will be used for the Fund's investment opportunities, operating expenses and for payment of various fees and expenses such as the Investment Management Fee and other fees. Any working capital reserves the Fund maintains may not be sufficient for investment purposes, and it may require debt or equity financing to operate. Accordingly, in the event that the Fund develops a need for additional capital in the future for investments or for any other reason, these sources of funding may not be available to the Fund. Consequently, if the Fund cannot obtain debt or equity financing on acceptable terms, the ability to acquire investments and expand operations will be adversely affected. As a result, the Fund would be less able to achieve portfolio diversification and the investment objective, which may negatively impact the Fund's results of operations and reduce the Fund's ability to make distributions to Shareholders.

#### MANAGEMENT RELATED RISKS

## Divergence of resources

Neither the Adviser nor its affiliates, including individuals employed by the Adviser or its affiliates, are prohibited from raising money for and managing another investment entity that makes the same types of investments as those the Fund will target. As a result, the time and resources that these individuals may devote to the Fund may be diverted. In addition, the Fund may compete with any such investment entity for the same investors and investment opportunities. The Adviser and its affiliates may engage in investment advisory business with accounts that compete with the Fund. Affiliates of the Adviser have no obligation to make their originated investment opportunities available to the Adviser or to the Fund.

## **Incentive Fee**

The Incentive Fee may create an incentive for the Adviser to cause the Fund to make investments that are riskier or more speculative than in the absence of the Incentive Fee. The Incentive Fee is based on both realized as well as unrealized appreciation; therefore, the Incentive Fee may be greater than if it were based only on realized gains.

The Incentive Fee, if any, is calculated and accrued on each date that the Fund calculates its net asset value, thereby reducing the net asset value of the Fund and the Shares. The repurchase price received by a Shareholder whose Shares are repurchased in a repurchase offer will reflect an Incentive Fee accrual if the Fund has experienced positive performance through the date of repurchase. However, the Fund will not accrue an Incentive Fee for any period unless it has fully recovered any cumulative losses from prior fiscal periods. This is known as a "high water mark." An Incentive Fee accrual may subsequently be reversed if the Fund's performance declines. No adjustment to a repurchase price will be made after it has been determined.

When Shares are repurchased in a repurchase offer, or the Fund pays a dividend or a distribution, the amount of any cumulative loss will be reduced in proportion to the reduction in the Fund's assets paid in respect of such repurchase or in respect of such dividend or distribution. The amount of any cumulative loss incurred by the Fund, however, will not be increased by any sales of Shares (including Shares issued as a result of the reinvestment of dividends and distributions). Consequently, as the number of outstanding Shares increases, the per-Share amount (but not the dollar amount) of a cumulative loss will be reduced. As a result, if a Shareholder does not reinvest its distributions, the benefits that such Shareholder would receive from a cumulative loss (if any) will be diluted. This means that a Shareholder's investment may bear a higher percentage Incentive Fee than it otherwise would.

The application of the Incentive Fee may not correspond to a particular Shareholder's experience in the Fund because aggregate cumulative appreciation is calculated on an overall basis allocated equally to each outstanding Share. A Shareholder may not owe an Incentive Fee on its investment, even though the value of its investment has increased. For example, if a Shareholder were to acquire Shares after the Fund's trading resulted in a cumulative loss, the Shareholder would not owe an Incentive Fee until sufficient gains have been achieved to exceed such losses, despite the fact that the Shareholder will have experienced aggregate cumulative appreciation in respect of its Shares. Conversely, a Shareholder may owe an Incentive Fee on its investment, even though the value of its investment has declined. For example, if a Shareholder were to acquire Shares at a time when the Fund had net profits to date for the Performance Period of \$2 million in excess of the high water mark, but at the end of the Performance Period the Fund had net profits of only \$1 million in excess of the high water mark, the Shareholder would owe an Incentive Fee despite the fact that the value of its investment declined. In addition, when Shares are issued at a net asset value reduced by the accrued Incentive Fee, and such accrued Incentive Fee is subsequently reversed due to trading losses, the reversal will be allocated equally among all outstanding Shares (increasing the net asset value per Share), including those Shares whose purchase price had not itself been reduced by the accrued Incentive Fee being reversed.

#### Potential conflicts of interest risk

The Adviser and the portfolio managers of the Fund have interests which may conflict with the interests of the Fund. In particular, the Adviser manages and/or advises other investment funds or accounts with the same or similar investment objectives and strategies as the Fund. As a result, the Adviser and the Fund's portfolio managers may devote unequal time and attention to the management of the Fund and those other funds and accounts, and may not be able to formulate as complete a strategy or identify equally attractive investment opportunities as might be the case if they were to devote substantially more attention to the management of the Fund. The Adviser and the Fund's portfolio managers may identify a limited investment opportunity that may be suitable for multiple funds and accounts, and the opportunity may be allocated among these several funds and accounts, which may limit the Fund's ability to take full advantage of the investment opportunity. Additionally, transaction orders may be aggregated for multiple accounts for purpose of execution, which may cause the price or brokerage costs to be less favorable to the Fund than if similar transactions were not being executed concurrently for other accounts. Furthermore, it is theoretically possible that a portfolio manager could use the information obtained from managing a fund or account to the advantage of other funds or accounts under management, and also theoretically possible that actions could be taken (or not taken) to the detriment of the Fund. At times, a portfolio manager may determine that an investment opportunity may be appropriate for only some of the funds and accounts for which he or she exercises investment responsibility, or may decide that certain of the funds and accounts should take differing positions with respect to a particular security. In these cases, the portfolio manager may place separate transactions for one or more funds or accounts which may affect the market price of the security or the execution of the transaction, or both, to the detriment or benefit of one or more other funds and accounts. For example, a portfolio manager may determine that it would be in the interest of another account to sell a security that the Fund holds, potentially resulting in a decrease in the market value of the security held by the Fund. Additionally, if the Adviser acquires material non-public confidential information in connection with its business activities for other clients, a portfolio manager or other investment personnel may be restricted from purchasing securities or selling certain securities for the Fund or other clients.

#### INVESTMENT RELATED RISKS

This section discusses the types of investments that may be made, directly or indirectly, by the Fund and some of the risks associated with such investments. It is possible that the Fund will make an investment that is not described below, and any such investment will be subject to its own particular risks.

## Cash, cash equivalents, investment grade bonds, money market instruments

The Fund may invest a portion of its assets in high quality fixed-income securities, money market instruments and money market mutual funds, or hold cash or cash equivalents in such amounts as the Adviser deems appropriate under the circumstances, including in response to adverse market or economic or political conditions, pending the investment of assets in accordance with its investment strategy or to maintain the liquidity necessary to effect repurchases of Shares or meet expenses, subject to the Fund's policy to invest at least 80% of its net assets, plus any borrowings for investment purposes, in equity securities. In addition, when the Adviser determines that adverse market conditions exist, the Fund may adopt a temporary defensive position and invest up to 100% of its assets in such securities. During such periods, the Fund may not achieve its investment objective.

These investments may be adversely affected by tax, legislative, regulatory, credit, political or government changes, interest rate increases and the financial conditions of issuers, which may pose credit risks that result in issuer default and the Fund may not achieve its investment objective.

## **Concentration risk**

The Fund may be susceptible to an increased risk of loss, including losses due to adverse events that affect the Fund's investments more than the market as a whole, to the extent that the Fund's investments are concentrated in a particular issue, issuer or issuers, country, market segment, or asset class.

## Counterparty risk

Many of the markets in which the Fund effects its transactions are "over the counter" or "inter-dealer" markets. The participants in these markets are typically not subject to credit evaluation and regulatory oversight as are members of "exchange based" markets. These risks may differ materially from those associated with transactions effected on an exchange, which generally are backed by clearing organization guarantees, daily marking to market and settlement, and segregation and minimum capital requirements applicable to intermediaries. Transactions entered into directly between two counterparties generally do not benefit from such protections. This exposes the Fund to the risk that a counterparty will not settle a transaction in accordance with its terms and conditions because of a dispute over the terms of the contract (whether or not bona fide) or because of a credit or liquidity problem, thus causing the Fund to suffer a loss. Such counterparty risk is accentuated in the case of contracts with longer maturities where events may intervene to prevent settlement, or where the Fund has concentrated its transactions with a single or small group of counterparties. The Fund is not restricted from dealing with any particular counterparty or from concentrating its investments with one counterparty. The ability of the Fund to transact business with any one or number of counterparties, the lack of any independent evaluation of such counterparties' financial capabilities and the absence of a regulated market to facilitate settlement may increase the potential for losses by the Fund.

## **Currency risk**

The Fund's portfolio may include direct and indirect investments in a number of different currencies. Any returns on, and the value of such investments may, therefore, be materially affected by exchange rate fluctuations, local exchange control, limited liquidity of the relevant foreign exchange markets, the convertibility of the currencies in question and/or other factors. A decline in the value of the currencies in which the Fund's investments are denominated against the U.S. Dollar may result in a decrease the Fund's net asset value. The Adviser may or may not elect to hedge the value of investments made by the Fund against currency fluctuations, and even if the Adviser deems hedging appropriate, it may not be possible or practicable to hedge currency risk exposure. Accordingly, the performance of the Fund could be adversely affected by such currency fluctuations.

#### **Derivatives risks**

The Fund may invest in, or enter into, derivatives, including swaps (including total return swaps), swaptions, CFDs, futures and forward agreements and options, for investment or hedging purposes. A total return swap is an agreement between counterparties to exchange periodic payments based on the value of asset or non-asset references. Total return swap contracts are exposed to the market risk factor of the specific underlying financial instrument or index. Total return swaps are less standard in structure than other types of swaps and can isolate and/or include multiple types of market risk factors including equity risk, credit risk, and interest rate risk. Total return swaps on single name equity securities may sometimes be referred to as "contracts for difference" and are subject to the same risks as described herein. The Fund could be exposed to credit or market risk due to unfavorable changes in the fluctuation of interest rates or in the price of the underlying security or index, the possibility that there is no liquid market for these agreements or that the counterparty may default on its obligation to perform.

The use of these instruments involves the following risks, among others:

- Derivatives can be volatile.
- Derivatives may entail investment exposures that are greater than their cost would suggest, meaning that a small investment in derivatives could have a large impact on the Fund's performance.
- The market for any derivative is, or suddenly can become, illiquid. Changes in liquidity may result in significant, rapid and unpredictable changes in the prices for derivatives.
- Entering into derivatives in foreign markets may involve more risk than entering into domestic transactions.
- Certain derivatives, such as swaps, involve the assumption of the credit risk of the counterparty to the transactions.

The stability and liquidity of derivatives depend in large part on the creditworthiness of the parties to the transactions. It is expected that the Adviser will monitor on an ongoing basis the creditworthiness of firms with which it will enter into derivatives. If there is a default by the counterparty to such transaction, the Adviser will under most normal circumstances have contractual remedies pursuant to the agreements related to the transaction. However, exercising such contractual rights may involve delays or costs that could result in the net asset value of the Fund being less than if the Adviser had not entered into the transaction. Furthermore, there is a risk that a counterparty could become insolvent. If the Adviser's counterparties (e.g., prime broker or broker-dealer) were to become insolvent or the subject of liquidation proceedings, there exists the risk that the recovery of securities and other assets from such prime broker or broker-dealer will be delayed or will be of a value less than the value of the securities or assets originally entrusted to such prime broker or broker-dealer.

In addition, the Adviser may use counterparties located in various jurisdictions. Such local counterparties are subject to various laws and regulations in various jurisdictions that are designed to protect their customers in the event of their insolvency. However, the practical effect of these laws and their application to the Fund's assets are subject to substantial limitations and uncertainties.

# Economic, political, and legal risks

The Fund's investments may include direct and indirect investments in a number of countries, including countries in emerging markets, exposing investors to a range of potential economic, political and legal risks, which could have an adverse effect on the Fund. These may include but are not limited to declines in economic growth, inflation, deflation, currency revaluation, nationalization, expropriation, confiscatory taxation, governmental restrictions, adverse regulation, social or political instability, negative diplomatic developments, military conflicts and terrorist attacks.

Certain markets may be significantly less developed than those in the United States. Certain investments may be subject to extensive regulation by national governments and/or political subdivisions thereof, which could prevent the Fund from making investments they otherwise would make, or cause them to incur substantial additional costs or delays that they otherwise would not suffer. Such countries may have different regulatory standards with respect to insider trading rules, restrictions on market manipulation, shareholder proxy requirements and/or disclosure of information. In addition, the laws of various countries governing business organizations, bankruptcy and insolvency may make legal action difficult and provide little, if any, legal protection for investors, including the Fund. Any such laws or regulations may change unpredictably based on political, economic, social and/or market developments.

## **Equity securities**

The Fund primarily invests in equity securities, which, for these purposes, means common and preferred stocks (including investments in IPOs), convertible securities, warrants and rights. As a result, the value of the Fund's portfolio will be affected by daily movements in the prices of equity securities. These price movements may result from factors affecting individual companies, industries or the securities markets as a whole. Individual companies may report poor results or be negatively affected by industry, regulatory or economic trends and developments. The prices of securities issued by such companies may suffer a decline in response. In addition, stock markets can be volatile at times, and stock prices can change drastically. This market risk will affect the Fund's net asset value per Share, which will fluctuate as the values of the Fund's investments and other assets change. Not all stock prices change uniformly or at the same time, and not all stock markets move in the same direction at the same time.

Convertible securities also carry unique risks. The value of a convertible security is a function of its "investment value" (determined by its yield in comparison with the yields of other securities of comparable maturity and quality that do not have a conversion privilege) and its "conversion value" (the security's worth, at market value, if converted into the underlying common stock). The investment value of a convertible security, therefore, is influenced by changes in interest rates, with investment value declining as interest rates increase and increasing as interest rates decline. The credit standing of the issuer and other factors may also have an effect on the convertible security's investment value. The conversion value of a convertible security is determined by the market price of the underlying common stock. If the conversion value is low relative to the investment value, the price of the convertible security is governed principally by its investment value. Generally, the conversion value decreases as the convertible security approaches maturity. To the extent the market price of the underlying common stock approaches or exceeds the conversion price, the price of the convertible security is increasingly influenced by its conversion value. A convertible security generally sells at a premium over its conversion value by the extent to which investors place value on the right to acquire the underlying common stock while holding a fixed-income or preferred security, as applicable.

A convertible security may be subject to redemption at the option of the issuer at a price established in the convertible security's governing instrument. If a convertible security held by the Fund is called for redemption, the Fund will be required to permit the issuer to redeem the security, convert it into the underlying common stock or sell it to a third party. Any of these actions could have an adverse effect on the Fund's ability to achieve its investment objective.

Warrants permit, but do not require, the holder to subscribe for other securities or commodities. Rights are similar to warrants, but typically have a shorter duration and are offered or distributed to shareholders of a company. Warrants and rights may be considered more speculative than certain other types of equity-like securities because they do not carry with them rights to dividends or voting rights, and they do not represent any rights in the assets of the issuer. If not exercised prior to their expiration dates, these instruments will lose their value. The market for warrants and rights can become very illiquid. Changes in liquidity may significantly impact the price for warrants and rights, which could decrease the value of the Fund's portfolio.

## Failure to qualify as a RIC or satisfy distribution requirement

To qualify for and maintain RIC qualification under the Code, the Fund must meet the following annual distribution, source-of-income and asset diversification requirements. See "Certain U.S. federal income tax considerations."

- The annual distribution requirement for a RIC will be satisfied if the Fund distributes to Shareholders on an annual basis at least 90% of the Fund's net ordinary income and realized net short-term capital gains in excess of realized net long-term capital losses, if any. Because the Fund may borrow, it is subject to an asset coverage ratio requirement under the Investment Company Act and is and may in the future become subject to certain financial covenants under loan and credit agreements that could, under certain circumstances, restrict the Fund from making distributions necessary to satisfy the distribution requirement. If the Fund is unable to obtain cash from other sources, it could fail to qualify for RIC tax treatment and thus become subject to corporate-level income tax.
- The source-of-income requirement will be satisfied if the Fund obtains at least 90% of its income for each year from dividends, interest, gains from the sale of stock or securities or similar passive sources.

The asset diversification requirement will be satisfied if the Fund meets certain asset diversification requirements at the end of each quarter of the Fund's tax year. To satisfy this requirement, (i) at least 50% of the value of the Fund's assets must consist of cash, cash equivalents, U.S. government securities, securities of other RICs and other securities if such other securities of any one issuer do not represent more than 5% of the value of the Fund's assets or more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of such issuer and (ii) no more than 25% of the value of the Fund's assets can be invested in the securities, other than U.S. government securities or securities of other RICs, of one issuer, of two or more issuers that are controlled, as determined under the Code and its applicable regulations, by the Fund and that are engaged in the same or similar or related trades or businesses or of certain "qualified publicly traded partnerships." Failure to meet these requirements may result in the Fund having to dispose of certain investments quickly in order to prevent the loss of its qualification as a RIC. Because most of the Fund's investments are in private companies, and therefore are relatively illiquid, any such dispositions could be made at disadvantageous prices and could result in substantial losses.

If the Fund fails to qualify for or maintain RIC tax treatment for any reason and is subject to corporate income tax, the resulting corporate taxes could substantially reduce the Fund's net assets, the amount of income available for distribution, and the amount of the Fund's distributions.

## Hedging

The Fund may seek to hedge against interest rate and currency exchange rate fluctuations by using structured financial instruments such as futures, options, swaps and forward contracts, subject to the requirements of the Investment Company Act. Use of structured financial instruments for hedging purposes may present significant risks, including the risk of loss of the amounts invested. Defaults by the other party to a hedging transaction can result in losses in the hedging transaction. Hedging activities also involve the risk of an imperfect correlation between the hedging instrument and the asset being hedged, which could result in losses both on the hedging transaction and on the instrument being hedged. Use of hedging activities may not prevent significant losses and could increase losses. Further, hedging transactions may reduce cash available to pay distributions to Shareholders. See "Investment related risks — Derivative instruments."

## **IPO** securities

Special risks are associated with investments in IPO securities, including lack of a trading history, lack of knowledge about the issuer and limited operating history. These factors may contribute to substantial price volatility for the shares of these companies, and this volatility can affect the value of the Fund's investment in these shares. The limited number of shares available for trading in some IPOs may make it more difficult for the Fund to buy or sell significant amounts of shares without an unfavorable effect on prevailing market prices. In addition, some companies in IPOs may be involved in relatively new industries or businesses, which may not be widely understood by investors. Some of these companies may be undercapitalized or regarded as developmental stage companies, without revenues or operating income, or close to achieving revenues or operating income.

## Large-capitalization companies

Large-capitalization companies may fall out of favor with investors based on market and economic conditions. In addition, larger companies may not be able to attain the high growth rates of successful smaller companies and may be less capable of responding quickly to competitive challenges and industry changes. As a result, the Fund's value may not rise as much as, or may fall more than, the value of funds that focus on companies with smaller market capitalizations.

## Leverage

The Fund may utilize leverage as part of its investment strategy, to satisfy tender offers for shareholders, and to otherwise provide the Fund with liquidity. The Fund may use leverage, including margin, at the discretion of SEG.

The Investment Company Act requires a registered investment company to satisfy an asset coverage requirement of 300% of its indebtedness, including amounts borrowed, measured at the time the investment company incurs the indebtedness, or 200% with respect to issuance of preferred stock (the "Asset Coverage Requirement").

This requirement means that the value of the investment company's total indebtedness may not exceed 33.33% or 50%, as applicable, of the value of its total assets (including the indebtedness). The Investment Company Act also requires that dividends may not be declared if this Asset Coverage Requirement is breached. The Fund's borrowings will at all times be subject to the Asset Coverage Requirement.

The interests of persons with whom the Fund enters into leverage arrangements will not necessarily be aligned with the interests of the Fund's Shareholders and such persons will have claims on the Fund's assets that are senior to those of the Fund's Shareholders. In addition to the foregoing, the use of leverage involves risks and special considerations for Shareholders, including:

- the likelihood of greater volatility of NAV, market price and dividend rate of the Shares than a comparable portfolio without leverage;
- a decline in NAV could affect the Fund's ability to make dividend payments, and a failure to pay dividends or make distributions could result in the Fund ceasing to qualify for pass-through tax treatment under Subchapter M of Subtitle A, Chapter 1, of the Code;
- the costs of borrowing may exceed the income from the portfolio securities purchased with the borrowed money;
- a decline in NAV will result if the investment performance of the additional securities purchased fails to
  cover their cost to the Fund (including any interest paid on the money borrowed or dividend requirements
  of preferred shares, if any);
- the risk that fluctuations in interest rates on borrowings or on short-term debt or in the interest or dividend
  rates on any debt securities or preferred shares that the Fund must pay will reduce the return to the
  Shareholders;
- the effect of leverage in a declining market, which is likely to cause a greater decline in the NAV of the Shares than if the Fund were not leveraged, may result in a greater decline in the market price of the Shares;
- when the Fund uses financial leverage, the investment management fees payable to the Adviser will be higher than if the Fund did not use leverage. This may create a conflict of interest between the Investment Manager, on the one hand, and the holders of Shares, on the other; and
- leverage may increase operating costs, which may reduce total return.

## Non-U.S. investments risk

The Fund may invest in companies that are organized or headquartered or have substantial sales or operations outside of the United States, its territories, and possessions. Such investments may be subject to certain additional risk due to, among other things, potentially unsettled points of applicable governing law, the risks associated with fluctuating currency exchange rates, capital repatriation regulations (as such regulations may be given effect during the term of the Fund or client portfolio), the application of complex U.S. and non-U.S. tax rules to cross-border investments, possible imposition of non-U.S. taxes on investors with respect to the income, and possible non-U.S. tax return filing requirements. The foregoing factors may increase transaction costs and adversely affect the value of the Fund's portfolio investments.

Additional risks of non-U.S. investments include but are not limited to: (a) economic dislocations in the host country; (b) less publicly available information; (c) less well-developed regulatory institutions; and (d) greater difficulty of enforcing legal rights in a non-U.S. jurisdiction. Moreover, non-U.S. portfolio investments and companies may not be subject to uniform accounting, auditing and financial reporting standards, practices and requirements comparable to those that apply to U.S. portfolio investments and companies. In addition, laws and regulations of foreign countries may impose restrictions that would not exist in the United States and may require financing and structuring alternatives that differ significantly from those customarily used in the United States. No assurance can be given that a change in political or economic climate, or particular legal or regulatory risks, including changes in regulations regarding foreign ownership of assets or repatriation of funds or changes in taxation might not adversely affect an investment by the Fund.

Increased tensions between Russia and Ukraine have escalated into an armed conflict given Russia's invasion of Ukraine in February 2022. The conflict involving these two countries and the recent outbreak of hostilities between them may escalate or result in more widespread conflict. Such hostilities, and the threat of wider-spread hostilities,

could lead to disruption, instability and volatility in global markets and commodity prices, economies and industries that could negatively impact the Fund's business, results of operations and financial condition. The conflict has already resulted in significant volatility in certain equity, debt and currency markets, material increases in commodity prices, such as oil and natural gas, and economic uncertainty. In addition, sanctions imposed on Russia by the United States and other countries, and any sanctions imposed in the future, could have a significant adverse impact on the Russian economy and related markets. The price and liquidity of investments may fluctuate widely as a result of the conflict and related events. How long the armed conflict and related events will last cannot be predicted. These tensions and any related events could have significant impact on Fund performance and the value of an investment in the Fund.

## Recent market events risk

Periods of unusually high financial market volatility and restrictive credit conditions, at times limited to a particular sector or geographic area, have occurred in the past and may be expected to recur in the future. Some countries, including the United States, have adopted or have signaled protectionist trade measures, relaxation of the financial industry regulations that followed the financial crisis, and/or reductions to corporate taxes. The scope of these policy changes is still developing, but the equity and debt markets may react strongly to expectations of change, which could increase volatility, particularly if a resulting policy runs counter to the market's expectations. The outcome of such changes cannot be foreseen at the present time. In addition, geopolitical and other risks, including environmental and public health risks, may add to instability in the world economy and markets generally. As a result of increasingly interconnected global economies and financial markets, the value and liquidity of the Fund's investments may be negatively affected by events impacting a country or region, regardless of whether the Fund invests in issuers located in or with significant exposure to such country or region.

An outbreak of respiratory disease caused by a novel coronavirus was first detected in December 2019 and has spread internationally. The outbreak and efforts to contain its spread have resulted in closing borders and quarantines, restricting international and domestic travel, enhanced health screenings, cancellations, disrupted supply chains and customer activity, responses by businesses (including changes to operations and reducing staff), and have produced general concern and uncertainty. The impact of the coronavirus pandemic, and other epidemics and pandemics that may arise in the future, could adversely affect national and global economies, individual companies and the market in general in a manner and for a period of time that cannot be foreseen at the present time. Health crises caused by the recent outbreak may heighten other pre-existing political, social and economic risks in a country or region. Governmental authorities and regulators throughout the world, such as the U.S. Federal Reserve, have in the past responded to major economic disruptions with changes to fiscal and monetary policy, including but not limited to, direct capital infusions, new monetary programs, and dramatically lower interest rates. Certain of those policy changes are being implemented or considered in response to the coronavirus outbreak. Such policy changes may adversely affect the value, volatility and liquidity of dividend and interest paying securities. In certain cases, an exchange or market may close or issue trading halts on either specific securities or even the entire market, which may result in the Fund being, among other things, unable to buy or sell certain securities or financial instruments or to accurately price its investments. In the event of a pandemic or an outbreak, there can be no assurance that the Fund and its service providers will be able to maintain normal business operations for an extended period of time or will not lose the services of key personnel on a temporary or long-term basis due to illness or other reasons. A pandemic or disease could also impair the information technology and other operational systems upon which the Fund's investment adviser relies, and could otherwise disrupt the ability of the Fund's service providers to perform essential tasks. Although multiple asset classes may be affected by a market disruption, the duration and effects may not be the same for all types of assets. To the extent the Fund may overweight its investments in certain countries, companies, industries or market sectors, such position will increase the Fund's exposure to risk of loss from adverse developments affecting those countries, companies, industries or sectors. These conditions could result in the Fund's inability to achieve its investment objective, adversely affect the prices and liquidity of the securities and other instruments in which the Fund invests, negatively impact the Fund's performance, and cause losses on your investment in the Fund.

The impairment or failure of one or more banks with whom the Fund transacts may inhibit the Fund's ability to access depository accounts. In such cases, the Fund may be forced to delay or forgo investments, resulting in lower Fund performance. In the event of such a failure of a banking institution where the Fund or other Fund investment holds depository accounts, access to such accounts could be restricted and U.S. Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") protection may not be available for balances in excess of amounts insured by the FDIC. In such instances, the Fund or other Fund investment may not recover such excess, uninsured amounts.

The failure of certain financial institutions, namely banks, may increase the possibility of a sustained deterioration of financial market liquidity, or illiquidity at clearing, cash management and/or custodial financial institutions. The failure of a bank (or banks) with which the Fund and/or the Fund investments have a commercial relationship could adversely affect, among other things, the Fund and/or the Fund investment's ability to pursue key strategic initiatives, including by affecting the Fund's or a Fund investment's ability to borrow from financial institutions on favorable terms.

## Registered investment companies

The Fund may invest in the securities of other registered investment companies, including money market funds and exchange-traded funds. Under one provision of the Investment Company Act, the Fund may not acquire the securities of other registered investment companies if, as a result, (i) more than 10% of the Fund's total assets would be invested in securities of other registered investment companies, (ii) such purchase would result in more than 3% of the total outstanding voting securities of any one registered investment company being held by the Fund or (iii) more than 5% of the Fund's total assets would be invested in any one registered investment company. Other provisions of the Investment Company Act are less restrictive provided that the Fund is able to meet certain conditions. The Fund, as a holder of the securities of other investment companies, will bear its *pro rata* portion of the other investment companies' expenses, including advisory fees. These expenses will be in addition to the direct expenses incurred by the Fund.

## Repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements

The Fund may enter into repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements. For the purposes of maintaining liquidity and achieving income, the Fund may enter into repurchase agreements with domestic and foreign banks, registered broker-dealers or other appropriate counterparties. A repurchase agreement is a contract under which the Fund would acquire a security for a relatively short period subject to the obligation of the seller to repurchase and the Fund to resell such security at a fixed time and price (representing the Fund's cost plus interest). In the case of repurchase agreements with broker-dealers, the value of the underlying securities (or collateral) will be at least equal at all times to the total amount of the repurchase obligation, including the interest factor. The Fund bears a risk of loss in the event that the other party to a repurchase agreement defaults on its obligations and the Fund is delayed or prevented from exercising its rights to dispose of the collateral securities. This risk includes the risk of procedural costs or delays in addition to a loss on the securities if their value should fall below their repurchase price. If the seller under the repurchase agreement becomes insolvent or otherwise fails to repurchase the securities, the Fund would be permitted to sell the securities. However, this right to sell may be restricted, or the value of the securities may decline before the securities can be liquidated. Repurchase agreements that are subject to foreign law may not enjoy protections comparable to those provided to certain repurchase agreements under U.S. bankruptcy law, and they therefore may involve greater risks.

The Fund may enter into reverse repurchase agreements. A reverse repurchase agreement involves the sale of a security by the Fund and its agreement to repurchase the instrument at a specified time and price. A counterparty to a reverse repurchase agreement may be unable or unwilling to complete the transaction as scheduled, which may result in losses to the Fund. Reverse repurchase agreements may be considered forms of borrowing for some purposes.

## Restrictions on raising capital and borrowing

As a result of the annual distribution requirement to qualify as a RIC under the Code, the Fund may need to periodically access the capital markets to raise cash to fund new investments of the Fund. The Fund may issue "senior securities," as defined in the Investment Company Act (including borrowing money from banks or other financial institutions) only in amounts such that the Fund's asset coverage, as defined in the Investment Company Act, equals at least 200% after such incurrence or issuance. Compliance with these requirements may unfavorably limit the Fund's investment opportunities and reduce its ability in comparison to other companies to profit from favorable spreads between the rates at which it can borrow and the rates at which it can lend.

The Fund may borrow for investment purposes. If the value of the Fund's assets declines, the Fund may be unable to satisfy the asset coverage test, which would prohibit the Fund from paying distributions and could prevent the Fund from qualifying as a RIC. If the Fund cannot satisfy the asset coverage test, the Fund may be required to sell a portion of its investments and, depending on the nature of the Fund's debt financing, repay a portion of the Fund's indebtedness at a time when such sales may be disadvantageous. In addition, any amounts that the Fund uses to service its indebtedness would not be available for distribution by the Fund to Shareholders.

## Risks relating to accounting, auditing and financial reporting, etc.

The legal, regulatory, disclosure, accounting, auditing and reporting standards in certain of the countries in which the Fund's investments (both direct and indirect) may be made may be less stringent and may not provide the same degree of protection or information to investors as would generally apply in the United States. Although the Fund uses U.S. GAAP, the assets, liabilities, profits and losses appearing in published financial statements of the Fund's investments may not reflect their financial position or operating results as they would be reflected under U.S. GAAP. Accordingly, the net asset value of the Fund published from time to time may not accurately reflect a realistic value for any or all of the investments.

Certain Fund investments may be in portfolio companies that do not maintain internal management accounts or adopt financial budgeting, internal audit or internal control procedures to standards normally expected of companies in the United States. Accordingly, information supplied to the Fund may be incomplete, inaccurate and/or significantly delayed. The Fund may therefore be unable to take or influence timely actions necessary to rectify management deficiencies in such portfolio companies, which may ultimately have an adverse impact on the net asset value of the Fund.

# Short selling risk

The Fund will engage in short selling. Selling securities short runs the risk of losing an amount greater than the amount invested. Short selling is subject to theoretically unlimited risk of loss because there is no limit on how much the price of the stock may appreciate before the short position is closed. A short sale may result in a sudden and substantial loss if, for example, an acquisition proposal is made for the subject company at a substantial premium over market price.

## Small-and medium-capitalization companies

The Fund may invest a substantial portion of its assets in the securities of companies with small-to medium-sized market capitalizations. While such securities may provide significant potential for appreciation, the securities of certain companies, particularly smaller-capitalization companies, may involve higher risks than do investments in securities of larger companies. For example, prices of small-capitalization and even medium-capitalization securities are often more volatile than prices of large-capitalization securities, as they typically are traded in lower volume and the issuers typically are more subject to changes in earnings and prospects, and the risk of bankruptcy or insolvency is higher than for larger, "blue-chip" companies. In addition, an investment in some small-capitalization companies may be relatively illiquid due to thin trading in their securities. Small- and medium-capitalization companies may fall out of favor with investors; may have limited product lines, operating histories, markets or financial resources; or may be dependent upon a limited management group.

# Swaps risk

In a standard "swap" transaction, two parties agree to exchange the returns, differentials in rates of return or some other amount earned or realized on the "notional amount" of predetermined investments or instruments, which may be adjusted for an interest factor. Swaps can involve greater risks than direct investment in securities, because swaps may be leveraged and subject to counterparty risk (e.g., the risk of a counterparty's defaulting on the obligation or bankruptcy), credit risk and pricing risk (i.e., swaps may be difficult to value). Swaps may also be considered illiquid.

#### ADDITIONAL RISKS OF THE FUND

#### Bonds and other fixed-income securities

The Fund may invest in bonds and other fixed-income securities, and may take short positions in these securities. The Adviser will invest in these securities when it believes such securities offer opportunities for capital appreciation (or capital depreciation in the case of short positions) and also may invest in these securities for temporary defensive purposes and to maintain liquidity. Fixed-income securities include, among other securities: bonds, notes and debentures issued by corporations; debt securities issued or guaranteed by governments; municipal securities; and mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities. Certain securities in which the Fund may invest, such as those with interest rates that fluctuate directly or indirectly based on multiples of a stated index, are designed to be highly sensitive to changes in interest rates and can subject the holders thereof to significant reductions of yield and possible loss of principal. These securities may pay fixed, variable or floating rates of interest, and may include zero coupon obligations. Fixed-income securities are subject to the risk of the issuer's inability to meet principal and interest payments on its obligations (*i.e.*, credit risk) and are subject to price volatility resulting from, among other things, interest rate sensitivity, market perception of the creditworthiness of the issuer and general market liquidity (*i.e.*, market risk).

Dislocations in the fixed-income sector and weaknesses in the broader financial market could adversely affect the Fund. As a result of such dislocations, the Fund may face increased borrowing costs, reduced liquidity and reductions in the value of its investments. One or more of the counterparties providing financing for the Fund's portfolio could be affected by financial market weaknesses, and may be unwilling or unable to provide financing. As a result, the Fund may be unable to fully finance its investments and operations. This risk would be exacerbated if a substantial portion of the Fund's financing is provided by a relatively small number of counterparties. If one or more major market participants fail or withdraw from the market, it could negatively affect the marketability of all fixed-income securities and this could reduce the value of the securities in the Fund's portfolio, thereby reducing the Fund's net asset value. Furthermore, if one or more counterparties are unwilling or unable to provide ongoing financing, the Fund could be forced to sell its investments at a time when prices are depressed.

# Commercial paper

Commercial paper represents short-term unsecured promissory notes issued in bearer form by corporations such as banks or bank holding companies and finance companies. The Fund may invest in commercial paper of any credit quality consistent with the Fund's investment objectives and policies, including unrated commercial paper. The rate of return on commercial paper may be linked or indexed to the level of exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and a foreign currency or currencies.

# Difficulty meeting RIC distribution requirement

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, the Fund may be required to recognize taxable income in circumstances in which the Fund does not receive a corresponding payment in cash. For example, if the Fund holds debt obligations that are treated under applicable tax rules as having original issue discount (such as debt instruments with payment-in-kind ("PIK") interest or, in certain cases, increasing interest rates or debt instruments that were issued with warrants), the Fund must include in income each year a portion of the original issue discount that accrues over the life of the obligation, regardless of whether cash representing such income is received by the Fund in the same taxable year. The Fund may also have to include in income other amounts that the Fund has not yet received in cash, such as deferred loan origination fees that are paid after origination of the loan or are paid in non-cash compensation such as warrants or stock. Furthermore, the Fund may invest in non-U.S. corporations (or other non-U.S. entities treated as corporations for U.S. federal income tax purposes) that could be treated under the Code and U.S. Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder (the "Treasury Regulations") as "passive foreign investment companies" and/or "controlled foreign corporations." The rules relating to investment in these types of non-U.S. entities are designed to ensure that U.S. taxpayers are either, in effect, taxed currently (or on an accelerated basis with respect to corporate level events) or taxed at increased tax rates at distribution or disposition. In certain circumstances this could require the Fund to recognize income where the Fund does not receive a corresponding payment in cash.

The Fund anticipates that a portion of its income may constitute original issue discount or other income required to be included in taxable income prior to receipt of cash. Further, the Fund may elect to amortize market discounts and include such amounts in its taxable income in the current year, instead of upon disposition, as an election not to do so would limit the Fund's ability to deduct interest expenses for tax purposes.

Because any original issue discount or other amounts accrued will be included in the Fund's investment company taxable income for the year of the accrual, the Fund may be required to make a distribution to Shareholders in order to satisfy the annual distribution requirement, even though the Fund will not have received any corresponding cash amount. As a result, the Fund may have difficulty meeting the annual distribution requirement necessary to qualify for and maintain its qualification as a RIC under the Code. The Fund may have to sell some of its investments at times and/or at prices the Fund would not consider advantageous, raise additional debt or equity capital or forgo new investment opportunities for this purpose. If the Fund is not able to obtain cash from other sources, the Fund may fail to qualify for or maintain RIC tax treatment and thus become subject to corporate-level income tax. For additional discussion regarding the tax implications of a RIC, see "Certain U.S. federal income tax considerations."

## **Emerging markets risk**

The Fund may invest in markets worldwide, including emerging markets. Investment in emerging market securities involves a greater degree of risk than an investment in securities of issuers based in developed countries. Among other things, emerging market securities investments may be subject to the following risks: less publicly available information; more volatile markets; less liquidity or available credit; political or economic instability; less strict securities market regulation; less favorable tax or legal provisions; price controls and other restrictive governmental actions; a greater likelihood of severe inflation; unstable currency; and war and expropriation of personal property.

Emerging markets generally are not as efficient as those in developed countries. Emerging markets tend to develop unevenly and may never fully develop. In some cases, a market for the security may not exist locally and transactions will need to be made on a neighboring exchange. Volume and liquidity levels in emerging markets are lower than in developed countries. When seeking to sell emerging market securities, little or no market may exist for the securities. In addition, issuers based in emerging markets are not generally subject to uniform accounting and financial reporting standards, practices and requirements comparable to those applicable to issuers based in developed countries, thereby potentially increasing the risk of fraud or other deceptive practices. The quality and reliability of official data published by the government or securities exchanges in emerging markets may not accurately reflect the actual circumstances being reported. The issuers of some non-U.S. securities, such as banks and other financial institutions, may be subject to less stringent regulations than would be the case for issuers in developed countries and, therefore, potentially carry greater risk. In addition, the Fund's investment opportunities in certain emerging markets may be restricted by legal limits on foreign investment in local securities or restrictions on the ability to convert currency or to take currencies out of certain countries.

## Micro-capitalization companies

Stock prices of micro-capitalization companies are significantly more volatile than those of larger companies and therefore the Fund's share price may increase or decrease by a much greater percentage than those of funds that invest solely in stocks issued by larger capitalization companies. Stock prices of micro-capitalization companies are also more vulnerable than those of larger companies to adverse business and economic developments and the stocks of micro-capitalization companies may be thinly traded, making it difficult for the Fund to buy and sell them. In addition, micro-capitalization companies are typically less financially stable than larger, more established companies and may depend on a small number of key personnel, making them highly vulnerable to loss of personnel. These companies also generally have less diverse product lines than larger capitalization companies and are more susceptible to adverse developments related to their products.

## **PIPEs**

The Fund may invest in private investment in public equities ("PIPEs") and other unregistered or otherwise restricted securities. The Fund expects most such private securities to be liquid within six to nine months of funding, but may also invest in other private securities with significantly longer or shorter restricted periods. PIPEs involve the direct placement of equity securities to a purchaser such as the Fund. Equity issued in this manner is often unregistered and therefore less liquid than equity issued through a public offering. Such private equity offerings provide issuers greater flexibility in structure and timing as compared to public offerings.

## Restricted and illiquid investments

Although the Fund will invest primarily in publicly-traded securities, the Fund may from time to time invest in securities and other financial instruments or obligations for which little or no market exists, restricted securities and other investments that are illiquid. Restricted securities are securities that may not be sold to the public without an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), or, if they are unregistered, may be sold only in a privately negotiated transaction or pursuant to an exemption from registration under the Securities Act.

Where registration is required to sell a security, the Fund may be obligated to pay all or part of the registration expenses, and a considerable period may elapse between the decision to sell and the time the Fund may be permitted to sell a security under an effective registration statement. If during such a period adverse market conditions were to develop, the Fund might obtain a less favorable price than the prevailing price when it decided to sell. The Fund may be unable to sell restricted and other illiquid securities at the most opportune times or at prices approximating the value at which they purchased such securities. The Fund's portfolio may include a number of investments for which no market exists and which have substantial restrictions on transferability.

## Yield and ratings risk

The yields on debt obligations are dependent on a variety of factors, including general market conditions, conditions in the particular market for the obligation, the financial condition of the issuer, the size of the offering, the maturity of the obligation and the ratings of the issue. The ratings of Moody's, S&P and Fitch, which are described in Appendix A to the SAI, represent their respective opinions as to the quality of the obligations they undertake to rate. Ratings, however, are general and are not absolute standards of quality. Consequently, obligations with the same rating, maturity and interest rate may have different market prices. Subsequent to its purchase by the Fund, a rated security may cease to be rated. The Adviser will consider such an event in determining whether the Fund should continue to hold the security.

#### LIMITS OF RISK DISCLOSURE

The above discussions and the discussions in the SAI relating to various risks associated with the Fund, Fund investments, and Shares are not, and are not intended to be, a complete enumeration or explanation of the risks involved in an investment in the Fund. Prospective investors should read this entire Prospectus, the SAI, and the Declaration of Trust Agreement and should consult with their own advisers before deciding whether to invest in the Fund. In addition, as the Fund's investment program or market conditions change or develop over time, an investment in the Fund may be subject to risk factors not currently contemplated or described in this Prospectus.

In view of the risks noted above, the Fund should be considered a speculative investment and prospective investors should invest in the Fund only if they can sustain a complete loss of their investment.

No guarantee or representation is made that the investment program of the Fund will be successful or that the various Fund investments selected will produce positive returns or that the Fund will achieve its investment objective.

#### MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND

### The Board of Trustees

The Board has overall responsibility for the management and supervision of the business operations of the Fund on behalf of the Shareholders. A majority of Trustees of the Board are and will be persons who are not "interested persons," as defined in Section 2(a)(19) of the Investment Company Act (the "Independent Trustees"). To the extent permitted by the Investment Company Act and other applicable law, the Board may delegate any of its rights, powers and authority to, among others, the officers of the Fund, any committee of the Board, service providers or the Adviser. See "BOARD OF TRUSTEES AND OFFICERS" in the Fund's SAI for the identities of the Trustees and executive officers of the Fund, brief biographical information regarding each of them, and other information regarding the election and membership of the Board.

## The Adviser

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, Select Equity Group, L.P., an investment adviser registered under the Advisers Act, serves as the Fund's Adviser.

The Adviser, founded in 1990, focuses on rigorous, independent research and disciplined, long-term investing. The Adviser was founded in connection with the merger of Select Equity Group, Inc. and its affiliate, Select Offshore Advisors, LLC, into a single investment advisory entity. The Adviser, which manages more than \$34 billion, as of February 28, 2025, in various long/short and long-only equity strategies that invest in companies across geographies and market capitalizations, provides investment advisory services to high-net-worth individuals, multi-family offices, endowments, foundations, private banks, insurance companies and public and corporate pensions. The Adviser also manages certain U.S. and non-U.S. private pooled investment vehicles, certain of which have investment objectives similar to the investment objective of the Fund, and provides sub-advisory services to a registered investment company and certain UCITS. The Adviser has had dedicated coverage of non-U.S. equities since 2005 and has managed international equities strategies since 2011, including acting as sub-adviser to two registered investment companies employing international equities strategies. The Adviser is majority owned and controlled by George S. Loening. Its principal office is located at 380 Lafayette Street, New York, New York 10003.

The Adviser and its affiliates serve as investment advisers to other funds that have investment programs that are similar to the investment program of the Fund and the Adviser and/or its affiliates may in the future serve as an investment adviser or otherwise manage or direct the investment activities of other registered and/or private investment companies and/or private funds with investment programs similar to the investment program of the Fund. See "Conflicts of interest."

## Adviser management team

George S. Loening has primary responsibility for managing the Fund's portfolio of investments, and is supported by associate portfolio managers, Joseph Tennant and Michael O'Reilly. Each of Messrs. Loening, Tennant and O'Reilly has served as a portfolio manager of the Fund since its inception.

George S. Loening is the Chairman of the Adviser and served in the same position at SEGI and SOA, which he founded in 1990 and 2001, respectively. Mr. Loening has a B.A. from Columbia University.

Joseph Tennant is an Associate Portfolio Manager of the Adviser. Mr. Tennant joined the Adviser in September 2016. Prior to joining the Adviser, Mr. Tennant was an Associate at Berkshire Partners. Prior to Berkshire Partners, he was an Analyst in the Restructuring & Reorganization Group at Blackstone. Mr. Tennant received a B.S. from the University of Pennsylvania (summa cum laude).

Michael O'Reilly is an Associate Portfolio Manager for the Adviser. Mr. O'Reilly joined the Adviser in January 2008. Prior to joining the Adviser's Research team, Mr. O'Reilly served as a Strategist and Business Analyst for the Adviser's Trading team. Prior to joining the Adviser, he was Director at TraderForum, a membership group for buyside equity traders owned by Institutional Investor, from 2001 to 2007. Prior to working at TraderForum, he was a journalist for several trading publications. Mr. O'Reilly received a B.A. from Fordham University.

The SAI provides additional information about the portfolio managers' compensation, other accounts managed by the portfolio managers and the portfolio managers' investments in the Fund, if any.

### **Investment Management Agreement**

The Board, including a majority of the Independent Trustees of the Fund, approved the Investment Management Agreement at a meeting held on January 8, 2025. The Investment Management Agreement became effective on March 13, 2025 and will continue in effect for an initial two year term. Thereafter, the Investment Management Agreement will continue in effect from year to year provided such continuance is specifically approved at least annually by (i) the vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Fund, or a majority of the Board, and (ii) the vote of a majority of the Independent Trustees of the Fund, cast in person at a meeting called for the purpose of voting on such approval. See "Voting." The Investment Management Agreement will terminate automatically if assigned (as defined in the Investment Company Act) and is terminable at any time without penalty by vote of a majority of members of the Fund's Board or by vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Fund on sixty (60) days written notice to the Adviser, or by the Adviser at any time without the payment of any penalty, on sixty (60) days written notice to the Fund. A discussion regarding the basis for the Board's most recent approval of the Investment Management Agreement will be available in the Fund's first annual or semiannual report to shareholders.

The Investment Management Agreement provides that, in the absence of willful misfeasance or gross negligence of its obligations to the Fund as determined by a court or governmental body of competent jurisdiction in a final judgement, neither the Adviser, any partner, principal, director, officer or employee of the Adviser, nor any of their respective affiliates, executors, heirs, assigns, successors or other legal representatives, will not be liable for any error of judgment, mistake of law or for any act or omission by the person in connection with the performance of services to the Fund. The Investment Management Agreement also provides for indemnification, to the fullest extent permitted by law, by the Fund, of the Adviser, or any partner, principal, director, officer or employee of the Adviser, and any of their affiliates, executors, heirs, assigns, successors or other legal representatives, against any liability or expense to which the person may be liable that arises in connection with the performance of services to the Fund, so long as the liability or expense is not incurred by reason of the person's willful misfeasance or gross negligence of its obligations to the Fund as determined by a court or governmental body of competent jurisdiction in a final judgement.

#### INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT FEE

The Fund pays the Adviser an investment management fee (the "Investment Management Fee") in consideration of the advisory and other services provided by the Adviser to the Fund. Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, the Fund pays the Adviser an Investment Management Fee at the annual rate of 1.00%, accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears based upon the Fund's average daily net assets. The Investment Management Fee will be paid to the Investment Adviser before giving effect to any repurchase of Shares in the Fund effective as of that date, and will decrease the net profits or increase the net losses of the Fund that are credited to its Shareholders. For the purposes of determining the Investment Management Fee payable to the Adviser for any month, net assets will be calculated prior to any reduction for any fees and expenses of the Fund for that month, including, without limitation, the Investment Management Fee payable to the Adviser for that month. The Investment Management Fee will be computed as of the last day of each month and will be due and payable in arrears within fifteen business days after the end of the month. The Adviser has contractually agreed to waive 0.25% of the Investment Management Fee through July 1, 2026. The waiver of the Investment Management Fee under the Management Fee Waiver Agreement is not subject to recoupment by the Adviser.

A portion of the Investment Management Fee may be paid to brokers or dealers that assist in the distribution of Shares, including brokers or dealers that may be affiliated with the Adviser.

## **INCENTIVE FEE**

Promptly after the end of each fiscal year of the Fund, the Fund pays to the Adviser an incentive fee (the "Incentive Fee") in an amount equal to 20.00% of the amount by which the Fund's net profits attributable to each class of Shares for all Performance Periods (as defined below) ending within or coterminous with the close of such fiscal year exceed the balance of the loss carryforward account (as described below) maintained in respect of such class, without duplication for any Incentive Fee paid by the Fund in respect of such class during such fiscal year. The Fund also pays the Adviser the Incentive Fee in the event that a Performance Period ends in connection with the repurchase of Shares by the Fund or a dividend or other distribution payable by the Fund, in each case on the date as of which the Fund's net asset value attributable to any class is calculated for such purpose; provided that only that portion of the Incentive Fee that is attributable to (i) the Shares being repurchased (not taking into account any proceeds from any contemporaneous issuance of Shares, by reinvestment of dividends and other distributions or otherwise), or (ii) the dividend or other distribution being paid by the Fund and not being reinvested in Shares of the Fund, will be paid to the Adviser for such Performance Period. The Incentive Fee, if any, is calculated and accrued on each date that the Fund calculates its net asset value.

For purposes of calculating the Incentive Fee, net profits means the amount by which: (a) the net assets of the Fund attributable to a class as of the end of a Performance Period, increased by the dollar amount of Shares of such class repurchased by the Fund during the Performance Period (excluding Shares of such class to be repurchased as of the last day of the Performance Period after the determination of the Incentive Fee) and by the amount of dividends and other distributions paid in respect of Shares of such class during the Performance Period and not reinvested in additional Shares of such class (excluding any dividends and other distributions to be paid as of the last day of the Performance Period), exceeds (b) the net assets of the Fund attributable to such class as of the beginning of the Performance Period, increased by the dollar amount of Shares of such class issued during the Performance Period (excluding any Shares of such class issued in connection with the reinvestment of dividends and other distributions paid by the Fund in respect of such class).

"Performance Period" means each 12-month period ending as of the Fund's fiscal year-end (or such other period ending as of the Fund's fiscal year-end in the event the Fund's fiscal year is changed); provided that the period of time from the prior Performance Period-end through the valuation date of (i) a repurchase offer and (ii) a dividend or other distribution also constitutes a Performance Period.

The Incentive Fee is payable for a Performance Period only if and to the extent that the Fund's loss carryforward account has a balance of zero. The loss carryforward account is a memorandum account with respect to each class that will have an initial balance of zero upon commencement of the class's operations and, thereafter, will be credited as of the end of each Performance Period with the amount of any net loss of the Fund attributable to such class for that Performance Period, and will be debited with the amount of any net profits of the Fund attributable to such class for that Performance Period, as applicable. This is known as a "high water mark."

In the event of the termination of the Advisory Agreement, the Fund will pay an Incentive Fee to the Adviser calculated in a manner as if such termination date were the end of the Fund's fiscal year.

The Incentive Fee structure presents risks that are not present in funds without incentive fees.

#### DISTRIBUTOR

Quasar Distributors, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of Foreside Financial Group, LLC (dba ACA Global) (the "Distributor") serves as the principal underwriter and distributor of the Fund's Shares pursuant to a distribution agreement (the "Distribution Agreement") with the Fund. The Distributor, located at Three Canal Plaza, Suite 100, Portland, Maine, 04101, is a broker-dealer registered with the SEC and is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ("FINRA").

The Distributor acts as the distributor of Shares for the Fund on a best efforts basis, subject to various conditions, pursuant to the terms of the Distribution Agreement. The Distributor is not obligated to sell any specific amount of Shares of the Fund. The Fund and the Distributor have the sole right to accept orders to purchase Shares and reserve the right to reject any order in whole or in part.

The Distributor may enter into agreements with selected broker-dealers, banks or other financial intermediaries for distribution of shares of the Fund. The Adviser and/or its affiliates may make payments to selected affiliated or unaffiliated third parties (including the parties who have entered into sub-distribution agreements with the Distributor) from time to time in connection with the sale of Shares and/or the services provided to Shareholders. These payments will be made out of the Adviser's and/or its affiliates' own assets and will not represent an additional charge to the Fund. The amount of such payments may be significant in amount and the prospect of receiving any such payments may provide such third parties or their employees with an incentive to favor sales of Shares over other investment options.

The Fund, the Distributor and the transfer agent may enter into arrangements with one or more financial intermediaries to provide non-distribution related sub-transfer agency, sub-administration, sub-accounting, and other services associated with Shareholders whose Shares are held of record in omnibus accounts, including platforms that facilitate trading and recordkeeping by financial intermediaries. In return for these services, the Fund may pay sub-transfer agency fees to such financial intermediaries in an amount not to exceed 0.15% of the average daily net assets of the Class A Shares. If paid by the Fund, these expenses will be included in "Other Expenses" under "Summary of Fund Expenses" in this prospectus and will not be used for distribution purposes. Such amounts will be in addition to, rather than in lieu of, Distribution and Servicing Fees payable under the Fund's Distribution and Service Plan as described herein.

Investors who purchase shares through financial intermediaries will be subject to the procedures of those intermediaries through which they purchase shares, which may include charges, investment minimums, cutoff times and other restrictions in addition to, or different from, those listed herein. Information concerning any charges or services will be provided to customers by the financial intermediary through which they purchase shares. Investors purchasing shares of the Fund through financial intermediaries should acquaint themselves with their financial intermediary's procedures and should read this Prospectus in conjunction with any materials and information provided by their financial intermediary. The Distributor does not receive compensation from the Fund for its distribution services, but may receive compensation for its distribution services from the Adviser.

The Fund has agreed to indemnify the Distributor and certain of the Distributor's affiliates against certain liabilities, including certain liabilities arising under the Securities Act, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act") and the Investment Company Act. To the extent consistent with applicable law, the Distributor has agreed to indemnify the Fund and each Trustee against certain liabilities under the Securities Act, the Exchange Act and the Investment Company Act. and in connection with the services rendered to the Fund.

#### SALES LOAD

Class A Shares are offered subject to a Sales Load of up to 2.00% of the subscription amount.

The Sales Load for Class A Shares will be deducted out of the investor's subscription amount and will not constitute part of an investor's capital contribution to the Fund or part of the assets of the Fund. No Sales Load may be charged without the consent of the Distributor. The Distributor may elect to reduce, otherwise modify or waive the Sales Load with respect to any Shareholder on behalf of: (i) purchasers for whom the Distributor, the Adviser, or one of their affiliates acts in a fiduciary, advisory, custodial, or similar capacity; (ii) employees and retired employees (including spouses, children, and parents of employees and retired employees) of the Distributor, the Adviser, and any affiliates of the Distributor or the Adviser; (iii) Trustees and retired Trustees of the Fund (including spouses, children, and parents of Trustees and retired Trustees); (iv) purchasers who use proceeds from an account for which the Distributor, the Adviser, or one of their affiliates acts in a fiduciary, advisory, custodial, or similar capacity, to purchase Shares; (v) clients of brokers, dealers, investment advisers, financial planners or other financial services firms with which the Fund has a special arrangement; (vi) participants in an investment advisory or agency commission program under which such participant pays a fee to an investment adviser or other firm for portfolio management or brokerage services; (vii) orders placed on behalf of other investment companies that the Distributor or an affiliated company distributes; and (viii) orders placed on behalf of purchasers who have previously invested in the Fund or other funds advised or distributed (as applicable) by the Adviser, the Distributor, and any affiliates of the Adviser or the Distributor in amounts that, if combined with the new order for Shares of the Fund, may qualify the purchaser for a lesser Sales Load (or a complete waiver of the Sales Load). To receive a Sales Load waiver in conjunction with any of the above categories, an investor must, prior to the time of purchase, inform the Fund about the investor's eligibility for the waiver of the Sales Load and give the Fund sufficient information to permit the Distributor to confirm that the investor qualifies for such a waiver. Notwithstanding any waiver, investors remain subject to eligibility requirements set forth in this Prospectus.

## **DISTRIBUTION PLAN**

Subject to receipt of exemptive relief from the SEC, the Fund intends to adopt a Distribution Plan for Class A Shares, which allows the Fund to pay Distribution and Servicing Fees for the sale and distribution of its Class A Shares. Under the Distribution Plan, the Fund may pay as compensation up to 0.75% on an annualized basis of the Fund's net asset value attributable to Class A Shares to the Fund's Distributor or other qualified recipients. Payment of the Distribution and Servicing Fee will be governed by the Distribution Plan, which will be adopted by the Fund with respect to Class A Shares in compliance with Rule 12b-1 under the Investment Company Act. The Distribution Fee will be paid out of the Fund's assets and will decrease the net profits or increase the net losses of the Fund with respect to Class A Shares.

The Adviser may pay additional compensation out of its own resources (i.e., not Fund assets) to certain other intermediaries and qualified recipients, including the Distributor, for sales and wholesaling support, and also for other services including due diligence support, account maintenance, provision of information, and support services. The amount of such payments may differ for different intermediaries and qualified recipients. Payments made by the Adviser may be one-time payments or may be ongoing payments. As a result of the various payments that financial intermediaries may receive from the Adviser, the amount of compensation that a financial intermediary may receive in connection with the sale of Shares may be greater than the compensation it may receive for the distribution of other investment products. This difference in compensation may create an incentive for a financial intermediary to recommend the Fund over another investment product.

#### ADMINISTRATOR AND TRANSFER AGENT

U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, which has its principal office at 615 East Michigan Street, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202, acts as administrator, fund accountant and transfer agent/dividend dispersing agent to the Fund pursuant to respective agreements. Fund Services provides certain administrative services to the Fund, including, among other responsibilities, acting as a liaison among Fund service providers; coordinating the Board of Trustees communications; preparation of materials for the Fund's annual audit and otherwise assisting with the annual audit; paying Fund expenses upon the authorization of the Fund; assisting with certain regulatory compliance, private offering and Blue Sky compliance and IRS compliance matters; assisting with SEC registration and reporting matters; assisting with certain financial reporting and tax reporting matters; assisting with Fund redemptions and redemption notifications; arranging for the computation of performance data, including net asset value and yield; responding to Shareholder inquiries; and arranging for the maintenance of books and records of the Fund, and providing, at its own expense, office facilities, equipment and personnel necessary to carry out its duties. In this capacity, Fund Services does not have any responsibility or authority for the management of the Fund, the determination of investment policy, or for any matter pertaining to the distribution of Fund Shares.

Pursuant to the Fund's agreements with Fund Services, Fund Services will receive fees from the Fund for services performed as administrator, fund accountant, transfer agent and custodian. Fund Services expects to receive a fee based on the average daily net assets of the Fund, subject to an annual minimum amount. The Fund also compensates Fund Services for certain out-of-pocket expenses.

## **CUSTODIAN**

U.S. Bank National Association (the "Custodian") serves as the primary custodian of the assets of the Fund and may maintain custody of such assets with U.S. and non-U.S. sub-custodians (which may be banks and trust companies), securities depositories and clearing agencies in accordance with the requirements of Section 17(f) of the Investment Company Act and the rules thereunder. Assets of the Fund are not held by the Adviser or commingled with the assets of other accounts other than to the extent that securities are held in the name of the Custodian or U.S. or non-U.S. sub-custodians in a securities depository, clearing agency or omnibus customer account of such custodian. The Custodian's principal business address is 1555 North Rivercenter Drive, Suite 302, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53212.

#### **FUND EXPENSES**

The Fund will pay all of its expenses and/or reimburse the Adviser or its affiliates to the extent they have previously paid such expenses on behalf of the Fund. The expenses of the Fund include, but are not limited to, any fees and expenses in connection with the organization and offering of Shares; all fees and expenses reasonably incurred in connection with the operation of the Fund such as direct and indirect expenses related to the assessment of prospective investments (whether or not such investments are consummated), investment structuring, corporate actions, travel associated with due diligence and monitoring activities and enforcing the Fund's rights in respect of the Fund investments; quotation or valuation expenses; the Investment Management Fee, the Distribution and Servicing Fee, the Incentive Fee and the Administration Fee; brokerage commissions; interest and fees on any borrowings by the Fund; professional fees (including, without limitation, expenses of consultants, experts and specialists); research expenses; fees and expenses of outside tax or legal counsel (including fees and expenses associated with the review of documentation for prospective investments by the Fund), including foreign counsel; accounting, auditing and tax preparation expenses; fees and expenses in connection with repurchase offers and any repurchases or redemptions of Shares; taxes and governmental fees (including tax preparation fees); fees and expenses of any custodian, sub-custodian, transfer agent, and registrar, and any other agent of the Fund; all costs and charges for equipment or services used in communicating information regarding the Fund's transactions with any custodian or other agent engaged by the Fund, as applicable; bank service fees; costs and expenses relating to any amendment of the Declaration of Trust or other organizational documents of the Fund; expenses of preparing, amending, printing, and distributing the prospectus, SAI, and any other sales material (and any supplements or amendments thereto), reports, notices, websites, other communications to Shareholders, and proxy materials; expenses of preparing, printing, and filing reports and other documents with government agencies; expenses of Shareholders' meetings, including the solicitation of proxies in connection therewith; expenses of corporate data processing and related services; Shareholder recordkeeping and account services, fees, and disbursements; expenses relating to investor and public relations; fees and expenses of the members of the Board who are not employees of the Adviser or its affiliates; insurance premiums; Extraordinary Expenses (as defined below); all costs and expenses incurred as a result of dissolution, winding-up and termination of the Fund; expenses of a reorganization, restructuring or merger, as applicable; and the expenses of engaging a new administrator, custodian, transfer agent or escrow agent. The Fund may need to sell portfolio securities to pay fees and expenses, which could cause the Fund to realize taxable gains.

"Extraordinary Expenses" means all expenses incurred by the Fund, as applicable, outside of the ordinary course of its business, including, for example, costs incurred in connection with any claim, litigation, arbitration, mediation, government investigation or dispute and the amount of any judgment or settlement paid in connection therewith, or the enforcement of the Fund's rights against any person or entity; and costs and expenses for indemnification or contribution payable by the Fund to any person or entity.

The Adviser will bear all of its own routine overhead expenses, including rent, utilities, salaries, office equipment and communications expenses. In addition, the Adviser is responsible for the payment of the compensation and expenses of those members of the Board and officers of the Fund affiliated with the Adviser, and making available, without expense to the Fund, the services of such individuals, subject to their individual consent to serve and to any limitations imposed by law.

The Adviser and its affiliates may be entitled to receive topping, break-up, monitoring, directors' organizational, set-up, advisory, investment banking, syndication and other similar fees in connection with the purchase, monitoring or disposition of Fund investments or from unconsummated transactions. Any such fees earned in respect of the Fund investments shall be for the benefit of the Fund.

The Fund's fees and expenses will decrease the net profits or increase the net losses of the Fund that are credited to or debited against each Shareholder's account.

## **Expense Limitation and Reimbursement Agreement**

The Adviser has contractually entered into an Expense Limitation and Reimbursement Agreement with the Fund to limit for a period of three years following the commencement of the Fund's operations the amount of "Specified Expenses" borne by the Fund in respect of Class I Shares and Class A Shares during the Limitation Period to an amount not to exceed 0.65% per annum of the Fund's net assets attributable to such Class. "Specified Expenses" is defined to include all expenses incurred in the business of the Fund, provided that the following expenses are excluded from the definition of Specified Expenses: (i) the Investment Management Fee; (ii) the Incentive Fee; (iii) Distribution and Servicing Fees in respect of any class of Shares; (iv) brokerage costs; (v) certain transaction-related expenses, including those incurred in connection with effecting short sales; (vi) interest payments; (vii) fees and expenses incurred in connection with a credit facility, if any, obtained by the Fund; (viii) taxes; and (ix) extraordinary expenses. The Adviser may extend the Limitation Period for the Fund on an annual basis. To the extent that Specified Expenses in respect of any class of Shares for any month exceed the Expense Cap applicable to a class of Shares, the Adviser will reimburse the Fund for expenses to the extent necessary to eliminate such excess. To the extent that the Adviser bears Specified Expenses in respect of a class of Shares, the Adviser may receive reimbursement for any expense amounts that were previously waived by the Adviser, for a period not to exceed three years from the date on which such expenses were waived by the Adviser, even if such reimbursement occurs after the termination of the Limitation Period, provided that the Fund may only make a repayment to the Adviser if such repayment does not cause the Fund's expense ratio (after the repayment is taken into account) to exceed the lesser of: (1) the Expense Cap in place at the time such amounts were waived by the Adviser; or (2) the Fund's current Expense Cap.

### Voting

Each Shareholder will have the right to cast a number of votes, based on the value of such Shareholder's Shares, at any meeting of Shareholders called by the (i) Board or (ii) Shareholders holding at least a majority of the total number of votes eligible to be cast by all Shareholders. Except for the exercise of such voting privileges, Shareholders will not be entitled to participate in the management or control of the Fund's business, and may not act for or bind the Fund.

#### CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Fund may be subject to a number of actual and potential conflicts of interest, including, but not limited to, those set forth in further detail below.

### **Affiliates**

The Adviser and its affiliates engage in financial advisory activities that are independent from, and may from time to time conflict with, those of the Fund. In the future, there might arise instances where the interests of such affiliates conflict with the interests of the Fund. The Adviser and its affiliates may provide services to, invest in, advise, sponsor and/or act as investment manager to investment vehicles and other persons or entities (including prospective investors in the Fund) which may have structures, investment objectives and/or policies that are similar to (or different than) those of the Fund; which may compete with the Fund for investment opportunities; and which may, subject to applicable law, co-invest with the Fund in certain transactions.

Although the Adviser and its affiliates will seek to allocate investment opportunities among the Fund and their other clients in a fair and reasonable manner, there can be no assurance that an investment opportunity which comes to the attention of the Adviser or its affiliates will be appropriate for the Fund or will be referred to the Fund. The Adviser and its affiliates are not obligated to refer any investment opportunity to the Fund.

The directors, partners, trustees, managers, members, officers and employees of the Adviser and their affiliates may buy and sell securities or other investments for their own accounts (including through funds managed by the Adviser or its affiliates). As a result of differing trading and investment strategies or constraints, investments may be made by directors, partners, trustees, managers, members, officers and employees that are the same, different from or made at different times than investments made for the Fund. To reduce the possibility that the Fund will be materially adversely affected by the personal trading described above, each of the Fund and the Adviser have adopted codes of ethics (collectively, the "Codes of Ethics") in compliance with Section 17(j) of the Investment Company Act that restricts securities trading in the personal accounts of investment professionals and others who normally come into possession of information regarding the portfolio transactions of the Fund. The Codes of Ethics are available on the EDGAR Database on the SEC's Internet site at <a href="http://www.sec.gov">http://www.sec.gov</a>, and copies may be obtained, after paying a duplicating fee, by email at publicinfo@sec.gov.

Expenses incurred with respect to the Fund investments are generally allocated among the Fund and the Adviser's and its affiliates' other clients participating in such investments. With respect to each Fund investment in which any co-investor of the Adviser or its affiliates co-invests with one or more funds (including the Fund) or separate accounts managed by the Adviser or its affiliates, investment expenses or indemnification obligations related to such investments are generally borne by such funds (including the Fund) or separate accounts and such co-investor(s) in proportion to the capital committed by each to such investment.

Broken deal expenses are generally allocated entirely to funds (including the Fund) or separate accounts discretionarily managed by the Adviser or its affiliates that would be allocated the relevant potential, but ultimately unconsummated, investment and not to any co-investor of the Adviser or its affiliates allocated to such proposed investment. Discretionarily managed funds (including the Fund) or separate accounts managed by the Adviser or its affiliates typically have priority allocation rights to investments whilst co-investors have no such rights but typically participate to enable a transaction considered beneficial for the discretionarily managed funds (including the Fund) or separate accounts managed by the Adviser or its affiliates participating therein as such funds' and separate accounts' collective appetite alone is typically insufficient to consummate such transactions. Accordingly, amongst such discretionarily managed funds (including the Fund) or separate accounts managed by the Adviser or its affiliates, each shall bear the entire amount of broken deal expenses incurred, in proportion to the capital they would have committed to the contemplated unconsummated investment, save for certain initial stage broken deal expenses which may be allocated to funds (including the Fund) and separate accounts managed by the Adviser or its affiliates (and not to co-investors of the Adviser and its affiliates) based on such funds' and accounts' investment objectives rather than a planned allocation to an investment.

Notwithstanding the above, the Adviser or its affiliates may enter into separate arrangements with clients and co-investors in connection with the payment of investment related expenses (including broken deal expenses); such arrangements shall not disadvantage any discretionarily managed funds or separate accounts managed by the Adviser or its affiliates.

#### Allocation of the Adviser's and its affiliates' time

The Fund substantially relies on the Adviser to manage the day-to-day activities of the Fund and to implement the Fund's investment strategy. The Adviser and certain of its affiliates are presently, and plan in the future to continue to be, involved with activities which are unrelated to the Fund. For example, the Adviser and its affiliates are not restricted from forming additional investment funds, from entering into other investment advisory relationships or from engaging in other business activities, even though such activities may be in competition with the Fund and/or may involve substantial time and resources of the Adviser. These activities could be viewed as creating a conflict of interest in that the time and effort of the Adviser, its affiliates and each of their officers and employees will not be devoted exclusively to the Fund's business but will be allocated between the Fund and the management of the assets of other advisees of the Adviser and its affiliates. The Adviser and its employees will devote only as much of their time to the Fund's business as the Adviser and its employees, in their judgment, determine is reasonably required, which may be substantially less than their full time. Therefore, the Adviser, its employees and certain affiliates may experience conflicts of interest in allocating management time, services and functions among the Fund and any other business ventures in which they or any of their key personnel, as applicable, are or may become involved. This could result in actions that are more favorable to other affiliated entities than to the Fund.

Nevertheless, the Fund believes that the members of the Adviser's senior management and the other key professionals have sufficient time to fully discharge their responsibilities to the Fund and to the other businesses in which they are involved. The Fund believes that its affiliates and executive officers will devote the time required to manage the business and expect that the amount of time a particular executive officer or affiliate devotes to the Fund will vary during the course of the year and depend on the Fund's business activities at the given time.

## Compensation arrangements

The Adviser will receive fees from the Fund in return for its services, and these fees could influence the advice provided by the Adviser. Among other matters, the compensation arrangements could affect the Adviser's judgment with respect to offerings of equity by the Fund, which allow the Adviser to earn increased Investment Management Fees.

#### DISTRIBUTIONS

The Fund contemplates declaring as dividends each year all or substantially all of its taxable income. From time to time, the Fund may also pay special interim distributions in the form of cash or Shares at the discretion of the Board. Unless Shareholders elect to receive distributions in the form of cash, the Fund intends to make its ordinary distributions in the form of additional Shares under the DRIP. Any distributions reinvested under the DRIP will nevertheless remain subject to U.S. federal (and applicable state and local) taxation to Shareholders. The Fund may finance its cash distributions to Shareholders from any sources of funds available to the Fund, including offering proceeds, borrowings, net investment income from operations, capital gains proceeds from the sale of assets (including Fund investments), non-capital gains proceeds from the sale of assets (including Fund investments), dividends or other distributions paid to the Fund on account of preferred and common equity investments by the Fund in portfolio companies and expense reimbursements from the Adviser. The Fund has not established limits on the amount of funds the Fund may use from available sources to make distributions.

Each year a statement on IRS Form 1099-DIV (or successor form) identifying the character (e.g., as ordinary income, qualified dividend income or long-term capital gain) of the distributions will be mailed to Shareholders. The Fund's distributions may exceed the Fund's earnings, especially during the period before the Fund has substantially invested the proceeds from this offering. As a result, a portion of the distributions the Fund makes may represent a return of capital for U.S. federal tax purposes. A return of capital generally is a return of a Shareholder's investment rather than a return of earnings or gains derived from the Fund's investment activities and will be made after deduction of the fees and expenses payable in connection with the offering, including any fees payable to the Adviser. See "Certain U.S. federal income tax considerations." There can be no assurance that the Fund will be able to pay distributions at a specific rate or at all.

The Fund intends to elect to be treated, and intends to qualify annually, as a RIC under the Code. To qualify for and maintain RIC tax treatment, the Fund must, among other things, annually distribute at least 90% of its net ordinary income and realized net short-term capital gains in excess of realized net long-term capital losses, if any. A RIC may satisfy the 90% distribution requirement by distributing dividends (other than capital gain dividends) during the taxable year (including dividends declared in October, November or December of a taxable year that, if paid in the following January, are treated as paid by a RIC and received by its shareholders in the prior taxable year). In addition, a RIC may, in certain cases, satisfy the 90% distribution requirement by distributing dividends relating to a taxable year after the close of such taxable year under the "spillover dividend" provisions of the Code. If a RIC makes a "spillover dividend" the amounts will be included in IRS Form 1099-DIV for the year the spillover distribution is paid.

The Fund can offer no assurance that it will achieve results that will permit the Fund to pay any cash distributions. If the Fund issues senior securities, the Fund will be prohibited from making distributions if doing so causes the Fund to fail to maintain the asset coverage ratios stipulated by the Investment Company Act or if distributions are limited by the terms of any of the Fund's borrowings. See "Certain U.S. federal income tax considerations."

The Fund has adopted the DRIP for Shareholders. As a result, if the Fund makes a distribution, then Shareholders have their distributions reinvested in additional Shares unless they specifically "opt out" of the DRIP so as to have their distributions paid in cash. See "Certain U.S. federal income tax considerations."

#### DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

The Fund has adopted the DRIP pursuant to which all Shareholders will have the full amount of their cash distributions reinvested in additional Shares unless a Shareholder elects otherwise. Any distributions of the Fund's Shares pursuant to the DRIP are dependent on the continued registration of the Fund's securities or the availability of an exemption from registration in the recipient's home state. Participants in the DRIP are free to elect to participate or terminate participation in the DRIP within a reasonable time as specified below.

If you elect not to participate in the DRIP, you will receive any distributions the Fund declares in cash. For example, if the Board authorizes, and the Fund declares, a distribution, then unless you have "opted-out" of the DRIP, you will have your cash distributions reinvested in additional Shares, rather than receiving the cash distributions. Shares will be issued pursuant to the DRIP at their NAV determined on the next valuation date following the ex-dividend date (the last date of a dividend period on which an investor can purchase Shares and still be entitled to receive the dividend). Shares issued pursuant to the DRIP will have the same voting rights as the Fund's Shares acquired by subscription to the Fund.

If you wish to participate in the DRIP and receive your distribution in additional Shares, no action will be required on your part to do so. Investors that wish to receive their distributions in cash may do so by making a written election to not participate in the DRIP on the investor's application or by notifying the Administrator by writing via either overnight mail or USPS mail to: Attn: SEG Partners Long/Short Equity Fund, U.S. Bancorp Global Fund Services, 615 East Michigan St, Milwaukee, WI 53202. Such written notice must be received by the Administrator 60 days prior to the record date of the distribution or the Shareholder will receive such distribution in Shares through the DRIP. If Shares are held by a broker or other financial intermediary, in some circumstances a Shareholder may "opt out" of the DRIP by notifying its broker or other financial intermediary of such election. Please check with your broker or other financial intermediary for more details.

There are no selling commissions, dealer manager fees or other sales charges to you as a result of your participation in the DRIP. The Fund pays the Administrator's fees under the DRIP. If you receive your ordinary cash distributions in the form of Shares as part of the DRIP, you generally are subject to the same U.S. federal, state and local tax consequences as you would be had you elected to receive your distributions in cash.

Your basis for determining gain or loss upon the sale of Shares received in a distribution from the Fund will be equal to the total dollar amount of the distribution payable in cash. Any Shares received in a distribution will have a holding period for tax purposes commencing on the day following the day on which the Shares are credited to your account. The Fund reserves the right to amend, suspend or terminate the DRIP. You may terminate your account under the DRIP by notifying the Administrator by writing via either overnight mail or USPS mail to: Attn: SEG Partners Long/Short Equity Fund, U.S.Bancorp Global Fund Services, 615 East Michigan St, Milwaukee, WI 53202.

All correspondence concerning the DRIP should be directed to the Administrator by writing via either overnight mail or USPS mail to: Attn: SEG Partners Long/Short Equity Fund, U.S. Bancorp Global Fund Services, 615 East Michigan St, Milwaukee, WI 53202.

### **Outstanding securities**

As of the date of the Prospectus, there were 4,000 Class I Shares of the Fund outstanding.

# **Repurchases of Shares**

## No right of redemption

**The Fund is not a liquid investment.** No Shareholder (or other person holding Shares acquired from a Shareholder) will have the right to require the Fund to redeem or repurchase its Shares. No public market exists for Shares, and none is expected to develop. Consequently, Shareholders may not be able to liquidate their investment other than as a result of repurchases of Shares by the Fund, as described below.

## Periodic repurchases

The Fund may sell portfolio investments to fund tender offers. Moreover, if the Fund's portfolio does not provide adequate liquidity to fund tender offers, the Fund may extend the last day of any tender offer. Although tender offers generally would be beneficial to Shareholders by providing them with some ability to sell their Shares at NAV, the repurchase of Shares by the Fund will decrease the total assets of the Fund. Tender offers are, therefore, likely to increase the Fund's expense ratio, may result in untimely sales of portfolio securities, increase the Fund's portfolio turnover and/or may limit the Fund's ability to execute its investment strategy. To the extent the Fund maintains a cash position to satisfy Fund repurchases, the Fund would not be fully invested, which may reduce the Fund's investment performance. Consummating a tender offer may require the Fund to liquidate portfolio securities, and realize gains or losses, at a time when the Adviser would otherwise consider it disadvantageous to do so. The Fund's purchase of tendered Common Shares pursuant to a tender offer would have tax consequences for tendering Shareholders and may have tax consequences for non-tendering Shareholders.

The Fund, from time to time, may provide liquidity to Shareholders by offering to repurchase Shares pursuant to written tenders by Shareholders. In determining whether the Fund should offer to repurchase Shares, the Board will consider the recommendations of the Adviser as to the timing of such an offer, as well as a variety of operational, business and economic factors. The Adviser anticipates that it will recommend to the Board that the Fund offer to repurchase Shares from Shareholders quarterly. The Adviser also expects that, generally, it will recommend to the Board that each repurchase offer should apply to 25% of the net assets of the Fund.

In determining whether to accept a recommendation to conduct a repurchase offer at any such time, the Board will consider the following factors, among others:

- whether any Shareholders have requested to tender Shares to the Fund;
- the liquidity of the Fund's assets;
- the investment plans and working capital and reserve requirements of the Fund;
- the relative economies of scale of the tenders with respect to the size of the Fund;
- the history of the Fund in repurchasing Shares;
- the availability of information as to the value of the Fund's investments;
- the existing conditions of the securities markets and the economy generally, as well as political, national or international developments or current affairs;
- any anticipated tax consequences to the Fund of any proposed repurchases of Shares; and
- the recommendations of the Adviser.

The Fund will repurchase Shares from Shareholders pursuant to written tenders on terms and conditions that the Board determines to be fair to the Fund and to all Shareholders. When the Board determines that the Fund will repurchase Shares, notice will be provided to Shareholders describing the terms of the offer, containing information Shareholders should consider in deciding whether to participate in the repurchase opportunity and containing information on how to participate.

In any particular repurchase offer, tendering Shareholders may not have all of their tendered Shares repurchased by the Fund. In addition, the Fund may repurchase Shares of Shareholders if, among other reasons, the Board determines that such repurchase would be in the interests of the Fund.

The Fund does not impose any charges in connection with repurchases of Shares unless the Share is held for less than one year. A 2.00% early repurchase fee will be charged by the Fund with respect to any repurchase of Shares from a Shareholder at any time prior to the day immediately preceding the one-year anniversary of the Shareholder's

initial purchase of Shares. The early repurchase fee will be retained by the Fund and will be for the benefit of the Fund's remaining Shareholders. An early repurchase fee payable by a Shareholder may be waived by the Fund in circumstances where the Board determines that doing so is in the best interests of the Fund.

Repurchase offers principally will be funded by cash, cash equivalents or borrowings, as well as by the sale of certain liquid securities.

Substantial requests for the Fund to repurchase Shares could require the Fund to sell certain investments earlier than the Adviser would have desired to meet the repurchase requests. Such sales may potentially result in losses to the Fund, and may increase the Fund's investment related expenses as a result of higher portfolio turnover rates and, accordingly, may increase the Fund's expenses as a percentage of its net assets. If the Fund borrows to finance repurchases, interest on that borrowing will negatively affect Shareholders who do not tender their Shares in a repurchase offer by increasing the Fund's expenses and reducing any net investment income.

## Mandatory redemption by the Fund

In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Declaration of Trust, the Fund may cause a mandatory redemption of all or some of the Shares of a Shareholder, or any person acquiring Shares from or through a Shareholder, at net asset value in accordance with the Declaration of Trust and Section 23 of the Investment Company Act and Rule 23c-2 thereunder.

#### TRANSFERS OF SHARES

No person shall become a substituted Shareholder of the Fund without the consent of the Fund, which consent may be withheld in its sole discretion. Shares held by Shareholders may be transferred only: (i) by operation of law in connection with the death, divorce, bankruptcy, insolvency, or adjudicated incompetence of the Shareholder; or (ii) under other limited circumstances, with the consent of the Board (which may be withheld in its sole discretion and is expected to be granted, if at all, only under extenuating circumstances).

Notice to the Fund of any proposed transfer must include evidence satisfactory to the Board that the proposed transferee, at the time of transfer, meets any requirements imposed by the Fund with respect to investor eligibility and suitability. Notice of a proposed transfer of a Share must also be accompanied by a properly completed investor application in respect of the proposed transferee. In connection with any request to transfer Shares, the Fund may require the Shareholder requesting the transfer to obtain, at the Shareholder's expense, an opinion of counsel selected by the Fund as to such matters as the Fund may reasonably request. Each transferring Shareholder and transferee may be charged reasonable expenses, including, but not limited to, attorneys' and accountants' fees, incurred by the Fund in connection with the transfer.

Any transferee acquiring Shares by operation of law in connection with the death, divorce, bankruptcy, insolvency, or adjudicated incompetence of the Shareholder, will be entitled to the distributions allocable to the Shares so acquired, to transfer the Shares in accordance with the terms of the Declaration of Trust and to tender the Shares for repurchase by the Fund, but will not be entitled to the other rights of a Shareholder unless and until the transferee becomes a substituted Shareholder as specified in the Declaration of Trust. If a Shareholder transfers Shares with the approval of the Board, the Fund shall as promptly as practicable take all necessary actions so that each transferee or successor to whom the Shares are transferred is admitted to the Fund as a Shareholder.

By subscribing for Shares, each Shareholder agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Fund, the Board, the Adviser, each other Shareholder, and any affiliated person of the Fund against all losses, claims, damages, liabilities, costs, and expenses (including legal or other expenses incurred in investigating or defending against any losses, claims, damages, liabilities, costs, and expenses or any judgments, fines, and amounts paid in settlement), joint or several, to which such persons may become subject by reason of or arising from any transfer made by that Shareholder in violation of the Declaration of Trust or any misrepresentation made by that Shareholder in connection with any such transfer.

### CALCULATION OF NET ASSET VALUE; VALUATION

The Fund calculates its NAV on each Business Day as of the close of regular trading on the New York Stock Exchange, currently 4:00 p.m., Eastern Time, and at such other times as the Board may determine, including in connection with repurchases of Shares, in accordance with the procedures described below or as may be determined from time to time in accordance with policies established by the Board (each, a "Determination Date"). In determining its net asset value, the Fund will value its investments as of the relevant Determination Date. The net asset value of the Fund equals, unless otherwise noted, the value of the total assets of the Fund (including the net asset value of each class of Shares), less all of its liabilities, including accrued fees and expenses, each determined as of the relevant Determination Date.

The Fund's fair value policies and procedures and valuation practices are designed to comply with Rule 2a-5 under the Investment Company Act. The Board has approved valuation procedures for the Fund (the "Valuation Policy"), and has approved the delegation of the day-to-day valuation and pricing responsibility for the Fund to the Adviser as its "valuation designee" pursuant to Rule 2a-5 under the Investment Company Act (the "Valuation Designee"), subject to the oversight of the Board. The valuation of the Fund's investments is performed in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board's Accounting Standards Codification 820 — Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures.

The Valuation Procedures provide that the Fund will value its Fund investments at fair value.

Securities listed on a securities exchange or an automated quotation system for which market quotations are readily available, including securities traded over-the-counter, generally are valued at the last quoted sale price on the principal exchange or market on which these securities are traded on the valuation date or, if there is no such reported sale on the valuation date, at the most recent quoted bid price for these securities.

For debt and equity securities which are not publicly traded or for which market prices are not readily available (unquoted investments) the fair value is determined by employing methodologies that utilize (a) market transactions, (b) broker-dealer supplied valuations, or (c) other electronic processing techniques. In determining the fair values of these investments, the Adviser will typically apply widely recognized market and income valuation methodologies including, but not limited to, security prices, yields, maturities, call features, ratings, and significant events or other developments relating to specific securities.

Due to the inherent uncertainty in determining the fair value of investments for which market values are not readily available, the fair values of these investments may fluctuate from period to period. In addition, such fair value may differ materially from the values that may have been used had a ready market existed for such investments and may significantly differ from the value ultimately realized by the Fund.

Assets and liabilities initially expressed in foreign currencies will be converted into U.S. Dollars using foreign exchange rates provided by a recognized pricing service.

The Adviser and its affiliates act as investment advisers to other clients that may invest in securities for which no public market price exists. Valuation determinations by the Adviser or its affiliates for other clients may result in different values than those ascribed to the same security owned by the Fund. Consequently, the fees charged to the Fund may be different than those charged to other clients, since the method of calculating the fees takes the value of all assets, including assets carried at different valuations, into consideration.

Expenses of the Fund, including the Investment Management Fee, are accrued on a daily basis on the Determination Date and taken into account for the purpose of determining the Fund's net asset value.

Prospective investors should be aware that situations involving uncertainties as to the value of portfolio positions could have an adverse effect on the Fund's net asset value and the Fund if the judgments of the Board or the Adviser regarding appropriate valuations should prove incorrect.

Due to the inherent uncertainty in determining the fair value of investments for which market values are not readily available the fair value of these investments may fluctuate from period to period. In addition, such fair value may differ materially from the values that may have been used had a ready market existed for such investments and may significantly differ from the value ultimately realized by the Fund.

#### CERTAIN U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following is a general summary of certain material U.S. federal income tax consequences applicable to the Fund and to an investment in Shares by a Shareholder. This summary does not discuss all of the tax consequences that may be relevant to a particular investor, including an investor who holds Shares as part of a hedging, straddle, conversion, constructive sale or other integrated transaction, or to certain investors (e.g., investors subject to the alternative minimum tax, tax-exempt organizations, dealers in securities, pension plans and trusts, financial institutions, certain foreign investors and insurance companies) subject to special treatment under U.S. federal income tax laws. In addition, this summary does not specifically address the special tax consequences that may be applicable to persons who hold interests in partnerships, grantor trusts and other pass-through entities that hold Shares. This summary assumes that investors hold Shares as capital assets (generally, property held for investment).

THIS SUMMARY IS NECESSARILY GENERAL, AND EACH PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR IS URGED TO CONSULT ITS TAX ADVISER WITH RESPECT TO THE U.S. FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL, AND FOREIGN INCOME AND OTHER TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE PURCHASE, OWNERSHIP AND DISPOSAL OF SHARES, INCLUDING APPLICABLE TAX REPORTING REQUIREMENTS.

This summary is based on the Code as in effect on the date of this Prospectus, the Treasury Regulations under the Code, rulings of the IRS, and court decisions in existence on the date hereof, all of which are subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect. The Fund has not sought a ruling from the IRS or any other U.S. federal, state or local agency with respect to any of the tax issues affecting the Fund. This summary does not discuss any aspects of the U.S. federal estate or gift tax or any state or local or non-U.S. tax. It does not discuss the special treatment under U.S. federal income tax laws that could result if the Fund invested in tax-exempt securities or certain other investment assets.

If a partnership (including an entity treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) holds Shares, the tax treatment of a partner in the partnership with respect to the Shares generally will depend upon the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. Partners in partnerships considering an acquisition of Shares should consult their tax advisers with respect to the partnership's purchase, ownership, and disposition of Shares.

The following discussion assumes that the Fund will continuously qualify as a RIC for each taxable year.

## Taxation of U.S. Shareholders

A "U.S. Shareholder" generally is a beneficial owner of Shares which is for U.S. federal income tax purposes:

- a citizen or individual resident of the United States;
- a corporation or other entity treated as a corporation, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, created or organized in or under the laws of the United States, any state or the District of Columbia;
- a trust, if a court in the United States has primary supervision over its administration and one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all decisions of the trust, or the trust has a valid election in effect under applicable Treasury Regulations to be treated as a U.S. person; or
- an estate, the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source.

Distributions by the Fund generally are taxable to U.S. Shareholders as ordinary income or capital gains. Distributions of the Fund's "investment company taxable income" (which is, generally, the Fund's net ordinary income plus realized net short-term capital gains in excess of realized net long-term capital losses) will be taxable as ordinary income to U.S. Shareholders to the extent of the Fund's current or accumulated earnings and profits, whether paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares. To the extent such distributions paid by the Fund to non-corporate U.S. Shareholders (including individuals) are attributable to dividends from U.S. corporations and certain qualified foreign corporations, such "qualifying dividends" may be eligible for a reduced rate of U.S. federal income tax. Distributions of the Fund's net capital gains (which is generally the Fund's realized net long-term capital gains in excess of realized net short-term capital losses) properly designated by the Fund as "capital gain dividends" will be taxable to a U.S. Shareholder as long-term capital gains, which are currently taxable at a maximum U.S. federal income tax rate of 20% (plus 3.8% net investment income tax for Shareholders with income in excess of certain thresholds) in the case of individuals, trusts or estates, regardless of the U.S. Shareholder's holding period for its Shares and regardless of whether paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares. Distributions in excess of the Fund's earnings and profits first will reduce a U.S. Shareholder's adjusted tax basis in such Shareholder's common stock and, after the adjusted basis is reduced to zero, will constitute capital gains to such U.S. Shareholder.

In the event that the Fund retains any net capital gains, the Fund may designate the retained amounts as undistributed capital gains in a notice to the Fund's Shareholders. If a designation is made, Shareholders would include in income, as long-term capital gains, their proportionate share of the undistributed amounts, but would be allowed a credit or refund, as the case may be, for their proportionate share of the corporate U.S. federal income tax paid by the Fund. In addition, the tax basis of Shares owned by a U.S. Shareholder would be increased by an amount equal to the difference between (i) the amount included in the U.S. Shareholder's income as long-term capital gains and (ii) the U.S. Shareholder's proportionate share of the corporate U.S. federal income tax paid by the Fund.

U.S. Shareholders will be treated as receiving distributions in the taxable year in which the distributions are made, with one exception. Any distribution declared by the Fund in October, November or December of any calendar year, payable to Shareholders of record on a specified date in such a month and actually paid during January of the following year, will be treated as if it had been paid by the Fund and received by the Fund's U.S. Shareholders on December 31 of the year in which the distribution was declared.

A U.S. Shareholder participating in the DRIP will be taxed on the amount of such distribution in the same manner as if such Shareholder had received such distribution in cash. Any stock received in a purchase under the DRIP will have a holding period for tax purposes commencing on the day following the day on which Shares are credited to a U.S. Shareholder's account.

A U.S. Shareholder generally will recognize taxable gain or loss if the U.S. Shareholder sells or otherwise disposes of its Shares. The amount of gain or loss will be measured by the difference between such U.S. Shareholder's adjusted tax basis in the Shares sold and the amount of the proceeds received in such sale or other disposition. Any gain arising from such sale or disposition generally will be treated as long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. Shareholder has held its Shares for more than one year. Otherwise, such gain will be classified as short-term capital gain or loss. However, any capital loss arising from the sale or disposition of Shares held for six months or less will be treated as long-term capital loss to the extent of the amount of capital gain dividends received, or undistributed capital gain deemed received, with respect to such Shares. In addition, all or a portion of any loss recognized upon a sale or other disposition of Shares may be disallowed if other Shares are purchased (whether through reinvestment of distributions or otherwise) within 30 days before such sale or disposition.

In general, individual U.S. Shareholders currently are subject to a maximum U.S. federal income tax rate of 20% on their net capital gain (i.e., the excess of realized net long-term capital gains over realized net short-term capital losses), including any long-term capital gain derived from an investment in Shares. Such rate is lower than the maximum rate on ordinary income currently payable by individuals. Corporate U.S. Shareholders currently are subject to U.S. federal income tax on net capital gain at the same 21% rate that applies to ordinary income. Non-corporate U.S. Shareholders with net capital losses for a year (i.e., capital losses in excess of capital gains) generally may deduct up to \$3,000 of such losses against their ordinary income each year; any net capital losses of a non-corporate U.S. Shareholder in excess of \$3,000 generally may be carried forward and used in subsequent years as provided in the Code. Corporate U.S. Shareholders generally may not deduct any net capital losses for a year but may carry back such losses for three years or carry forward such losses for five years.

The Code requires the Fund to report U.S. Shareholders' cost basis, gain/loss, and holding period to you and to the IRS on IRS Form 1099s when "covered" securities are sold. For purposes of these reporting requirements, all of the Fund's Shares acquired by non-tax-exempt Shareholders, including those acquired through DRIP, will be considered "covered" securities. The Fund uses FIFO ("first-in, first-out") as the Fund's default tax lot identification method for all Shareholders. A tax lot identification method is the way the Fund will determine which specific Shares are deemed to be sold when there are multiple purchases on different dates at differing transaction prices, and the entire position is not sold at one time. The Fund's default tax lot identification method is the method "covered" securities will be reported on your IRS Form 1099 if you do not select a specific tax lot identification method. You may choose a method different than the Fund's standing method and will be able to do so from the time you are admitted as a Shareholder up through and until the sale of the "covered" securities. If you hold Shares through a broker, your broker may use a different default tax lot identification method. For those securities defined as "covered" under current IRS cost basis tax reporting regulations, the Fund is responsible for maintaining accurate cost basis and tax lot information for tax reporting purposes. The Fund is not responsible for the reliability or accuracy of the information for those securities that are not "covered." You are encouraged to refer to the appropriate Treasury Regulations or consult your tax adviser with regard to your personal circumstances and any decisions you may make with respect to choosing a tax lot identification method, as well as any appropriate adjustments to the basis or holding period of Shares as reported by the Fund.

The Fund will send to each of its U.S. Shareholders, as promptly as possible after the end of each calendar year, a notice detailing, on a per share and per distribution basis, the amounts includible in such U.S. Shareholder's taxable income for such year as ordinary income, qualified dividend income and long-term capital gain. In addition, the U.S. federal income tax status of each year's distributions generally will be reported to the IRS (including the amount of distributions, if any, eligible for preferential rates). Distributions may also be subject to additional state, local and foreign taxes depending on a U.S. Shareholder's particular situation.

The Fund may be required to withhold U.S. federal income tax, or backup withholding, currently at a rate of 24%, from all distributions to any non-corporate U.S. Shareholder (i) who fails to furnish the Fund with a correct taxpayer identification number or a certificate that such Shareholder is exempt from backup withholding or (ii) with respect to whom the IRS notifies the Fund that such Shareholder has failed to properly report certain interest and dividend income to the IRS and to respond to notices to that effect. An individual's taxpayer identification number is his or her social security number. Any amount withheld under backup withholding is allowed as a credit against the U.S. Shareholder's U.S. federal income tax liability, provided that proper information is provided to the IRS.

A U.S. Shareholder that is an individual or estate, or a trust that does not fall into a special class of trusts that is exempt from such tax, will generally be subject to a 3.8% tax on the lesser of (i) the U.S. Shareholder's "net investment income" for a taxable year and (ii) the excess of the U.S. Shareholder's modified adjusted gross income for such taxable year over \$200,000 (\$250,000 in the case of joint filers). For these purposes, "net investment income" will generally include taxable distributions and deemed distributions paid with respect to the Shares, and net gain attributable to the disposition of Shares (in each case, unless such Shares are held in connection with certain trades or businesses) but will be reduced by any deductions properly allocable to such distributions or net gain.

Under applicable Treasury Regulations, if a U.S. Shareholder recognizes a loss with respect to its Shares of \$2,000,000 or more for a non-corporate U.S. Shareholder or \$10,000,000 or more for a corporate U.S. Shareholder in any single taxable year (or a greater loss over a combination of years), the U.S. Shareholder must file with the IRS a disclosure statement on IRS Form 8886. Direct U.S. Shareholders of portfolio securities are in many cases excepted from this reporting requirement, but under current guidance, U.S. Shareholders of a RIC are not excepted. The fact that a loss is reportable under these regulations does not affect the legal determination of whether the taxpayer's treatment of the loss is proper. Significant monetary penalties apply to a failure to comply with this reporting requirement. States may also have a similar reporting requirement. U.S. Shareholders should consult their tax advisers to determine the applicability of these regulations in light of their individual circumstances.

Shareholders may also be subject to state and local taxes on income and gain from Fund shares.

U.S. Shareholders should consult their tax advisers with respect to the U.S. federal, state, local and non-U.S. tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposition of Shares, including applicable tax reporting obligations. Tax-exempt Shareholders should consult their tax advisers with respect to the consequences of an investment in the Fund.

## **Taxation of tax-exempt Shareholders**

Under current law, an investment in the Fund generally should not give rise to unrelated business taxable income ("UBTI") by tax-exempt Shareholders (including, among others, individual retirement accounts, 401(k) accounts, Keogh plans, pension plans and certain charitable entities). Notwithstanding the foregoing, a tax-exempt Shareholder could realize UBTI by virtue of its investment in Shares if such tax-exempt Shareholder borrows to acquire its Shares. Certain tax-exempt Shareholders are subject to differing rules under the Code and may recognize UBTI from an investment in the Fund.

More information regarding taxes is contained in the SAI.

\* \* \* \* \*

THE TAX AND OTHER MATTERS DESCRIBED IN THIS PROSPECTUS DO NOT CONSTITUTE, AND SHOULD NOT BE CONSIDERED AS, LEGAL OR TAX ADVICE TO PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS. EACH INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT ITS TAX ADVISER AS TO THE U.S. FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL AND NON-U.S. TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE ACQUISITION, OWNERSHIP AND DISPOSITION OF SHARES, AND THE FUND'S ELECTION TO BE SUBJECT TO U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX AS A RIC, INCLUDING APPLICABLE TAX REPORTING OBLIGATIONS.

#### ERISA CONSIDERATIONS

The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA") and the Code impose certain requirements on employee benefit plans to which ERISA applies, and on those persons who are fiduciaries with respect to such plans. The Code imposes certain requirements on certain other plans (such as individual retirement accounts and Keogh plans (and their fiduciaries)) that, although not subject to ERISA, are subject to certain similar rules of the Code (such employee benefit plans subject to ERISA and such other plans, collectively, "Plans"). In accordance with ERISA's general fiduciary standards, before investing in the Fund, a Plan fiduciary should determine whether such an investment is permitted under the governing Plan instruments and is appropriate for the Plan in view of its overall investment policy and the composition and diversification of its portfolio. Moreover, ERISA and the Code require that certain reporting and disclosure be made with respect to Plan assets, that Plan assets generally be held in trust, and that the indicia of ownership of Plan assets be maintained within the jurisdiction of district courts of the United States. Thus, a Plan fiduciary considering an investment in the Fund should consult with its legal counsel concerning all the legal implications of investing in the Fund, especially the issues discussed in the following paragraphs.

Unless statutory or administrative exemptions are available, Section 406 of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code prohibit a broad range of transactions involving Plan assets and persons who have certain specified relationships to a Plan ("parties in interest" within the meaning of ERISA and "disqualified persons" within the meaning of the Code) and impose additional prohibitions on parties in interest and disqualified persons who are Plan fiduciaries. These prohibitions also apply with respect to any entity whose assets consist of Plan assets by reason of Plans' investment in the entity. Certain prospective Plan investors may currently maintain relationships with the Adviser and/or entities that are affiliated with the Fund, and, as a result, one or more of such entities may be deemed to be a "party in interest" or "disqualified person" with respect to (including a fiduciary of) any such prospective Plan investor.

Because the Fund is registered as an investment company under the Investment Company Act, the assets of the Fund will not be deemed to constitute Plan assets.

Employee benefit plans that are governmental plans (as defined in Section 3(32) of ERISA) are not subject to requirements of ERISA and the Code discussed above but may be subject to materially similar provisions of other applicable federal or state law or may be subject to other legal restrictions on their ability to invest in the Fund. Accordingly, any such governmental plans and the fiduciaries of such plans should consult with their legal counsel concerning all the legal implications of investing in the Fund.

THE FUND'S SALE OF SHARES TO PLANS IS IN NO RESPECT A REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY BY THE FUND, THE ADVISER OR ANY OF THEIR AFFILIATES, OR BY ANY OTHER PERSON ASSOCIATED WITH THE SALE OF THE SHARES, THAT SUCH INVESTMENT BY PLANS MEETS ALL RELEVANT LEGAL REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO PLANS GENERALLY OR TO ANY PARTICULAR PLAN, OR THAT SUCH INVESTMENT IS OTHERWISE APPROPRIATE FOR PLANS GENERALLY OR FOR ANY PARTICULAR PLAN.

# **DESCRIPTION OF SHARES**

The Fund is authorized to offer an unlimited amount of Shares. This Prospectus describes two separate classes of Shares designated as Class I Shares and Class A Shares. Class A Shares will not be offered to investors until the Fund has received Exemptive Relief from the SEC permitting the multi-class structure. There is no assurance that the Fund will be granted the exemptive order. From time to time, and subject to the receipt of Exemptive Relief, the Board may create and offer additional classes of Shares, or may vary the characteristics of Class I Shares or Class A Shares described herein, including without limitation, in the following respects: (1) the amount of fees permitted by a distribution and/or service plan as to such class; (2) voting rights with respect to a distribution and/or service plan as to such class; (3) different class designations; (4) the impact of any class expenses directly attributable to a particular Class of Shares; (5) differences in any dividends and NAVs resulting from differences in fees under a distribution and/or service plan or in class expenses; (6) any sales load structure; and (7) any conversion features, as permitted under the Investment Company Act.

#### **ELIGIBLE INVESTORS**

Shares of the Fund may be purchased by U.S. investors who certify they are a "qualified client" within the meaning of Rule 205-3 under the Advisers Act. The criteria for qualifying as a "qualified client" is set forth in the subscription documents that must be completed by each prospective investor. The "qualified client" criteria will apply to all investors and will not be waived.

In addition, Shares are generally being offered only to investors that are U.S. persons for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Investors who meet such qualifications are referred to in this Prospectus as "Eligible Investors." The qualifications required to invest in the Fund will appear in subscription documents that must be completed by each prospective investor. Existing Shareholders who request to purchase additional Shares will be required to qualify as "Eligible Investors" and to complete an additional investor certification prior to any additional purchase.

Prospective investors that are non-U.S. persons for U.S. federal income tax purposes must request a copy of supplemental offering materials without charge by (i) writing to the Fund via email at privatewealth@selectequity.com; (ii) via mail at SEG Partners Long/Short Equity Fund, c/o U.S. Bancorp Global Fund Services, 615 East Michigan St, Milwaukee, WI 53202, or (iii) by calling the Fund at 844-536-2990. See "Certain U.S. federal income tax considerations — Taxation of non-U.S. Shareholders."

Each prospective investor in the Fund should obtain the advice of his, her or its own legal, accounting, tax and other advisers in reviewing documents pertaining to an investment in the Fund, including, but not limited to, this Prospectus, SAI and the Declaration of Trust before deciding to invest in the Fund.

# **Purchasing Shares Purchase terms**

The minimum initial investment in Class A Shares and Class I Shares is \$50,000, and the minimum additional investment in the Fund by any Shareholder is \$10,000. However, the Fund, in its sole discretion, may accept investments below these minimums. The purchase price of the Shares is based on the net asset value per Share as of the date such Shares are purchased. Fractions of Shares will be issued to one one-thousandth of a Share.

Shares will generally be offered for purchase as of the first business day of each calendar month, except that Shares may be offered more or less frequently as determined by the Board in its sole discretion. The Board may also suspend or terminate offerings of Shares at any time.

Except as otherwise permitted by the Board, initial and subsequent purchases of Shares will be payable in cash. Each initial or subsequent purchase of Shares will be payable in one installment which will generally be due four business days prior to the date of the proposed acceptance of the purchase set by the Fund, which is expected to be the last day of each calendar month (the "Acceptance Date"), where funds are remitted by wire transfer. A prospective investor must also submit a completed subscription document (including investor certifications) at least five business days before the Acceptance Date. The Fund reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to accept or reject any subscription to purchase Shares in the Fund at any time. Although the Fund may, in its sole discretion, elect to accept a subscription prior to receipt of cleared funds, an investor will not become a Shareholder until cleared funds have been received. In the event that cleared funds and/or a properly completed subscription document (including investor certifications) are not received from a prospective investor prior to the cut-off dates pertaining to a particular offering, the Fund may hold the relevant funds and subscription document for processing in the next offering.

Pending any offering, funds received from prospective investors will be placed in an account with the Transfer Agent. On the date of any closing, the balance in the account with respect to each investor whose investment is accepted will be invested in the Fund on behalf of such investor. Any interest earned with respect to such account will be paid to the Fund and allocated *pro rata* among Shareholders.

#### DERIVATIVE ACTIONS/EXCLUSIVE FORUM

No person, other than a Trustee, who is not a Shareholder, will be entitled to bring any derivative action, suit or other proceeding on behalf of the Fund. Except for claims asserted under the U.S. federal securities laws including, without limitation, the Investment Company Act, no shareholder may maintain a derivative action on behalf of the Fund unless holders of at least ten percent (10%) of the outstanding shares join in the bringing of such action. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither of the preceding provisions governing derivative actions will apply to claims brought under the federal securities laws.

In addition to the requirements set forth in Section 3816 of the Delaware Statutory Trust Act, a Shareholder may bring a derivative action on behalf of the Fund or any class of the Fund only if the following conditions are met: (a) the Shareholder or Shareholders must make a pre-suit written demand upon the Trustees to bring the subject action unless an effort to cause the Trustees to bring such an action is not likely to succeed; and a demand on the Trustees shall only be deemed not likely to succeed and therefore excused if a majority of the Trustees, or a majority of any committee established to consider the merits of such action, has a personal financial interest in the transaction at issue, and a Trustee shall not be deemed interested in a transaction or otherwise disqualified from ruling on the merits of a Shareholder demand by virtue of the fact that such Trustee receives remuneration for his service as a Trustee of the Fund or as a trustee or director of one or more investment companies that are under common management with or otherwise affiliated with the Fund; and (b) unless a demand is not required under clause (a) above, the Trustees must be afforded a reasonable amount of time to consider such Shareholder request and to investigate the basis of such claim; and the Trustees shall be entitled to retain counsel or other advisers in considering the merits of the request and shall require an undertaking by the Shareholders making such request to reimburse the Fund for the expense of any such advisers in the event that the Trustees determine not to bring such action. For purposes of this paragraph, the Trustees may designate a committee of one Trustee to consider a Shareholder demand if necessary to create a committee with a majority of Trustees who do not have a personal financial interest in the transaction at issue. If the demand for derivative action has been considered by the Board of Trustees, and a majority of the Independent Trustees, after considering the merits of the claim, has determined that maintaining a suit would not be in the best interests of the Fund or the affected class, as applicable, the complaining Shareholders shall be barred from commencing the derivative action. If upon such consideration the appropriate members of the Board of Trustees determine that such a suit should be maintained, then the appropriate officers of the Fund shall commence initiation of that suit and such suit shall proceed directly rather than derivatively. The Declaration of Trust provides that the foregoing provisions will not apply to claims brought under the federal securities laws.

The Fund's By-Laws provide that each Shareholder irrevocably agrees that any claims, suits, actions or proceedings arising out of or relating in any way to the Fund will be exclusively brought in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware or, if such court does not have subject matter jurisdiction, then any other court in the State of Delaware with subject matter jurisdiction, and irrevocably waives any right to trial by jury. The exclusive forum provision may require shareholders to bring an action in an inconvenient or less favorable forum. The exclusive forum and jury waiver provisions do not apply to claims arising under the Federal securities laws.

## TERM, DISSOLUTION AND LIQUIDATION

The Fund may be dissolved upon approval of a majority of the Trustees. Upon the liquidation of the Fund, its assets will be distributed first to satisfy (whether by payment or the making of a reasonable provision for payment) the debts, liabilities and obligations of the Fund, including actual or anticipated liquidation expenses, other than debts, liabilities or obligations to Shareholders, and then to the Shareholders proportionately in accordance with the amount of Shares that they own. Assets may be distributed in-kind on a proportionate basis if the Board or liquidator determines that the distribution of assets in-kind would be in the interests of the Shareholders in facilitating an orderly liquidation.

### REPORTS TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Fund will furnish to Shareholders as soon as practicable after the end of each of its taxable years such information as is necessary for them to complete U.S. federal and state income tax or information returns, along with any other tax information required by law. The Fund anticipates sending Shareholders an unaudited semi-annual and an audited annual report within 60 days after the close of the period for which the report is being made, or as otherwise required by the Investment Company Act.

### FISCAL YEAR

The Fund's fiscal year is the 12-month period ending on October 31. The Fund's taxable year is the 12-month period ending on October 31.

## INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM; LEGAL COUNSEL

The Board has selected Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP, of 300 Madison Avenue, New York, NY 10017, as the independent registered public accountants of the Fund.

Faegre Drinker Biddle & Reath LLP, of One Logan Square, Suite 2000, Philadelphia, PA 19103-6996, serves as counsel to the Fund.

## **INQUIRIES**

Inquiries concerning the Fund and the Shares (including procedures for purchasing Shares) should be directed to the Adviser at privatewealth@selectequity.com, Administrator at 615 East Michigan Street, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202 or by calling the Fund toll-free at 844-536-2990.

All dealers that buy, sell or trade the Fund's Shares, whether or not participating in this offering, may be required to deliver a Prospectus.

### **EXHIBIT A**

### APPENDIX A

### PRIOR PERFORMANCE OF SIMILAR ACCOUNTS

The Fund is modeled after four private funds similarly managed by the Adviser and also managed by the Fund's portfolio managers: (a) SEG Partners L.P.; (b) SEG Partners II L.P.; (c) SEG Partners Offshore Master Fund Ltd.; and (d) SEG Partners III L.P., (each such privately offered fund being a "Private Fund," and collectively, the "Private Funds"). The Private Funds are the only private funds that are similarly managed by the Adviser. The Fund has substantially the same investment objective, policies, strategies and restrictions as each Private Fund. This section presents past performance information for each Private Fund.

The performance of the Private Funds does not represent, and is not a substitute for, the performance of the Fund, and you should not assume that the Fund will have the same future performance as a Private Fund. It is inappropriate and would be inaccurate for an investor to consider the Private Funds' performance below as being indicative of the future performance of the Fund. The Adviser has included this section because it believes that the performance information presented is sufficiently relevant, as related or supplemental information only, to merit consideration by prospective Fund investors.

The table shows performance of each Private Fund over time (as compared with a broad-based market index for reference). Returns for each Private Fund are shown both gross of fees and expenses and net of all actual fees and expenses, including sales loads relating to each Private Fund. Gross of fee and expense returns are returns gross of fees and expenses other than actual trading fees and expenses, and reflect all items of income, gain, and loss. Net of fee and expense returns are calculated by adjusting gross of fee and expense returns by the amount shown in the Fund's fee and expense table under the heading Total Annual Fund Operating Expenses for all periods.

Investors should be aware that the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") uses a methodology different from that used below to calculate performance for registered funds, which could result in different performance results. Indices are unmanaged and it is not possible to invest directly in indices. As such, the index figures do not account for any fees or fund expenses.

The past performance in managing other portfolios is no guarantee of future results in managing the Fund. Please note the following cautionary guidelines in reviewing this disclosure:

- Performance figures are not the performance of the Fund. Each Private Fund's performance shown is not the performance of the Fund and is not an indication of how the Fund would have performed in the past or will perform in the future. The Fund's performance in the future will be different from each Private Fund's performance presented, due to factors such as differences in the cash flows, different fees, expenses, portfolio size and composition, and possibly asset allocation methodology. In particular, each Private Fund's performance is not necessarily an indication of how the Fund will perform, as the portfolio is not subject to investment limitations, leverage restrictions, diversification requirements and other restrictions imposed on investment companies by the Investment Company Act and the Internal Revenue Code, which, if applicable, can have a negative impact on the Fund's performance.
- The performance shown are averages. The information below shows annual rates of return for the years indicated, but does not reflect any volatility that may have occurred within a given period. The following table provides for each Private Fund's annual rates of return for the periods indicated, net and gross of fees, as discussed above.

Edgar Agents, LLC.	<b>Date:</b> April 8, 2025 1:32 pm	<b>Seq:</b> 59 of 109
SEG Partners LongShort Equity Fund.	Form: N-2/A3 Blacklining: Clean	<b>Project:</b> ea0237165-01

S&P 500 Return <sup>(1)</sup>	18.4%			1.4%	25.0%	15.2%																									
SEG Partners III LP Gross	0.1%	N/A	N/A	0.3%	%9.8	14.7%																									
SEG SEG Partners III Partners III	-1.2%	N/A	N/A	0.0%	5.5%	10.9%																									
\$\&P\$ 500 1	18.4% 12 Month <sup>(2)</sup>	16.9% 5 Year <sup>(2)(3)</sup>	13.0% 10 Year <sup>(2)(3)</sup>	1.4% 2025	25.0% 2024	26.3% 2023	-18.1%	28.7%	18.4%	31.5%	-4.4%	21.8%	12.0%	1.4%	13.7%	32.4%	16.0%	2.1%	15.1%	26.5%	-37.0%	5.5%	15.8%	4.9%	10.9%	28.7%	-22.1%	%6.0			
SEG Partners Offshore Master Fund Ltd. Gross	0.1%	11.1%	12.3%	0.3%	8.4%	6.7%	-10.3%	31.5%	27.9%	35.6%	4.8%	16.9%	2.1%	15.9%	17.3%	26.5%	%6.9	3.3%	15.0%	17.8%	-20.9%	25.4%	20.8%	13.6%	19.9%	4.2%	17.9%	2.7%			
SEG 1 Partners 0 Offshore Master Fund Ltd. Net	-0.7%	8.1%	9.1%	0.1%	7.2%	5.7%	-11.2%	24.2%	21.3%	27.5%	3.0%	12.6%	%6.0	11.8%	12.9%	20.2%	4.7%	1.8%	13.1%	16.6%	-21.7%	19.3%	15.7%	10.0%	14.9%	2.6%	13.4%	2.1%			
S&P 500 Return <sup>(1)</sup>	18.4% 12 Month <sup>(2)</sup>	16.9% 5 Year <sup>(2)(3)</sup>	13.0% 10 Year <sup>(2)(3)</sup>	1.4% 2025	25.0% 2024	26.3% 2023	-18.1% 2022	28.7% 2021	18.4% 2020	31.5% 2019	-4.4% 2018	21.8% 2017	12.0% 2016	1.4% 2015	13.7% 2014	32.4% 2013	16.0% 2012	2.1% 2011	15.1% 2010	26.5% 2009	-37.0% 2008	5.5% 2007	15.8% 2006	4.9% 2005	10.9% 2004	28.7% 2003	2002	2001			
SEG Partners II L.P. Gross	0.0%	11.2%	12.5%	0.3%	8.3%	7.0%	-10.3%	31.7%	28.2%	36.0%	4.9%	17.3%	2.4%	16.0%	17.5%	27.2%	7.3%	3.8%	16.0%	18.7%	-21.0%	25.7%	21.0%	13.8%	20.3%	2.4%					
SEG P: Partners II L.P. Net	-0.8%	8.2%	9.2%	0.1%	7.1%	%0.9	-11.2%	24.3%	21.6%	27.7%	3.1%	12.9%	1.1%	11.9%	13.1%	20.8%	5.0%	2.2%	13.8%	17.6%	-21.8%	19.6%	15.9%	10.1%	15.3%	1.1%					
S&P 500 F Return <sup>(1)</sup>	18.4% 12 Month <sup>(2)</sup>	16.9% 5 Year <sup>(2)(3)</sup>	13.0% 10 Year <sup>(2)(3)</sup>	1.4% 2025	25.0% <b>2024</b>	26.3% 2023	-18.1% 2022	28.7% <b>2021</b>	18.4% 2020	31.5% 2019	-4.4% 2018	21.8% 2017	12.0% <b>2016</b>	1.4% 2015	13.7% 2014	32.4% 2013	16.0% 2012	2.1% 2011	15.1% 2010	26.5% 2009	-37.0% 2008	5.5% 2007	15.8% 2006	4.9% 2005	10.9% 2004	28.7% 2003	-22.1%	-11.9%	-9.1%	21.0%	12.8%
SEG Partners L.P. Gross R	0.1%	11.4%	12.6%	0.3%	%9.8	7.1%	-10.4%	31.8%	28.9%	35.9%	5.2%	17.3%	2.3%	16.0%	17.7%	27.2%	8.2%	4.0%	16.1%	18.8%	-20.4%	25.7%	20.9%	13.7%	20.7%	5.2%	19.2%	32.5%	23.2%	-2.6%	47.8%
SEG F Partners L.P. Net	-0.7%	8.4%	9.3%	0.1%	7.3%	%0.9	-11.3%	24.4%	22.1%	27.7%	3.3%	12.9%	1.0%	11.9%	13.3%	20.8%	5.7%	2.4%	13.6%	17.6%	-21.2%	19.6%	15.8%	10.0%	15.6%	3.3%	14.4%	26.5%	19.3%	-3.6%	39.7%
	12 Month <sup>(2)</sup>	5 Year <sup>(2)(3)</sup>	10 Year $^{(2)(3)}$	2025	2024	2023	2022	2021	2020	2019	2018	2017	2016	2015	2014	2013	2012	2011	2010	2009	2008	2007	2006	2005	2004	2003	2002	2001	2000	1999	1998

© (5) (E)

Reflects no deduction for fees, taxes or expenses. For the periods ended February 28, 2025. The performance data presented reflects the total return, calculated as the compounded annual growth rate over a specified period.